MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTICE OF 36" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 36t Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of
Marpol Private Limited will be held on Friday, September 27, 2019 at 11 a.m. at the
Registered Office of the Company at Panandiker Chambers, 1st Floor, M.L. Furtado Road,
Margao, Goa, India - 403601, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

Item No. 1- Adoption of Financial Statements for the Financial year ended
31st March, 2019:

To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Financial Statements of the Company
comprising the audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019, Statement of Profit and
Loss and Cash Flow Statement and Notes thereto for the financial year ended on that
date and the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

Item No. 2- Re-appointment of Statutory Auditors:

To consider and if thought fit, pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 141 and 142 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory amendment(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), M/s Ganesh Daivajna & Co, Chartered
Accountants (Registration No. 103054W), be and are hereby re-appointed as Statutory
Auditors of the Company, to hold office from the conclusion of the 36th meeting until
the conclusion of the 41st Annual General Meeting of the Company and that their
remuneration be fixed by the Board in addition to the reimbursement of tax and out of
pocket expenses, if any incurred by them in connection with the audit of accounts of the
Company for the financial year ending 31st March, 2019.”

Item No. 3 - Reappointment of Mr. G.T Govindarajan retiring by rotation :

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. G.T Govindarajan (DIN: 08105268), who retires by
rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Item No. 4 - To consider and if thought fit, with or without modification(s), the
following as a Special Resolution :

Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“Act”) read with rules made thereunder and pursuant to all other applicable
provisions of the Act, applicable rules, regulations, guidelines, circulars etc. issued by
the Reserve Bank of India and/ or any other appropriate authority, if any, and other
applicable statutes and laws, if any (including any statutory modification or re-
enactment thereof, for the time being in force), consent of the members of the Company
be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter
referred to as the “Board”, which term shall include any duly constituted Committee(s)
thereof or such other person(s) authorised by the Board) for borrowing from time to
time, any sum or sums of money at its discretion, from any one or more Banks, Financial
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Institutions and other Persons, Firms, Bodies Corporate, notwithstanding that the
monies to be borrowed together with the monies already borrowed by the Company
(apart from temporary loans obtained from the Company’s bankers in the ordinary
course of business) may, at any time, exceed the aggregate of the paid-up share capital
and free reserves (i.e. reserves not set apart for any specific purpose) of the Company at
such time, subject to such aggregate borrowings not exceeding the amount, which is
Rs. 30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Crore only), over and above the aggregate of the
paid-up share capital and free reserves (ie. reserves not set apart for any specific
purpose) of the Company at any relevant time and that the Board be and is hereby
empowered and authorised to arrange or fix the terms and conditions of all such monies
to be borrowed from time to time as to interest, repayment, security or otherwise as it
may, in its absolute discretion, think fit.

Further resolved that for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board be and
is hereby authorized and empowered to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it
may in its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper, or desirable and to settle any
question, difficulty, doubt that may arise in respect of the borrowing(s) aforesaid and
further to do all such acts, deeds and things and to execute all documents and writings
as may be necessary, proper, desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution, to
execute all such documents, instruments and writings as may be required.”

Item No. 5 - To consider and if thought fit, with or without modification(s), the
following as a Special Resolution :

Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“Act”) read with rules made thereunder and pursuant to all other applicable
provisions of the Act, applicable rules, regulations, guidelines, circulars etc. issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and/ or any other appropriate authority, if any, and other
applicable statutes and laws, if any (including any statutory modification or re-
enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and provisions of the Articles of
Association of the Company, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the
“Board”, which term shall include any duly constituted Committee(s) thereof or such
other person(s) authorised by the Board), for creation of charge/ mortgage/ pledge/
hypothecation/ security, in such form and manner and with such ranking and at such
time and on such terms as the Board may determine, on all or any of the moveable
and/or immovable properties, tangible and/or intangible assets of the Company, both
present and future and/or the whole or any part of the undertakings of the Company, as
the case may be in favour of the lenders, agents and trustees, for securing the
borrowings availed/ to be availed by the Company by way of loan(s) (in foreign
currency and/ or rupee currency) and securities (comprising fully/ partly convertible
debentures and/or Non-Convertible Debentures with or without detachable or non-
detachable warrants and/or secured premium notes and/ or floating rate notes/bonds
or other debt instruments), issued/ to be issued by the Company (including deferred
sales tax loans availed/ to be availed by the Company) from time to time, subject to the
limits approved under Section 180(1)(c) of the Act, together with interest at the
respective agreed rates, additional interest, compound interest in case of default,
accumulated interest, liquidated damages, commitment charges, premium on pre-
payment, remuneration of the Agents/ Trustees, premium (if any) on redemption, all
other costs, charges and expenses, including any increase as a result of devaluation/
revaluation/ fluctuation in the rates of exchange and all other monies payable by the
Company, in terms of the loan agreement(s)/ trust deeds(s)/ other Agreement(s)/ any
other document, entered into/ to be entered into between the Company and the
lenders/ agents/ trustees/ state government/ agency(ies) representing various state
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government and/ or other agencies etc. in respect of the said loans/ borrowings/
debentures/ bonds/ or other securities/ deferred sales tax loans and containing such
specific terms and conditions and covenants in respect of enforcement of security as
may be stipulated in that behalf and agreed to between the Board and the lenders/
agents/ trustees/ state governments/ agency(ies), etc. from time to time.

Further resolved that the charge/ mortgage/ pledge/ hypothecation/ security to be
created by the Company as aforesaid may rank prior/ pari passu/ subservient with/ to
the charge/ mortgage/ pledge/ hypothecation/ security already created or to be created
in future by the Company or in such other manner and ranking as may be thought
expedient by the Board and as may be agreed to between the concerned parties.

Further resolved that for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board be and
is hereby authorised to negotiate, finalise, settle, and execute such documents/ deeds/
writings/ papers/ agreements as may be required and to do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things, as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or desirable and
to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in regard to creating charge/
mortgage/ pledge/ hypothecation/ security as aforesaid and to delegate all or any of
these powers herein conferred to any Committee and/or Directors and/or officials of
the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Marpol Private Limited

Chairman
DIN: 08115481

Date : April 26, 2019
Place: Margao, Goa

Notes:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/
HERSELF AND SUCH A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. A person can act as proxy
on behalf of members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more
than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights.
A member holding more than ten (10) percent of the total share capital of the
Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such
person shall not act as proxy for any other person or shareholder. The instrument of
Proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
registered office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of
the Meeting.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item Nos. 4 and 5

In view of the Company’s business requirements and financial position, approval of the
members of the Company is sought for fixing the overall borrowing limits of the
Company, in terms of the provisions of Section 180 (1) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013
["Act”]_

Further approval of the members of the Company is also sought, in terms of the
provisions of Section 180 (1) (a) of the Act, for authorising creation of security or charge
on all or any of the movable and/ or immovable assets of the Company, to secure the
borrowing, if necessitated, in such form, manner and ranking as may be determined by
the Board of Directors, from time to time.

The Directors recommend the Special Resolution as set out at Item Nos. 3 and 4 of the
accompanying Notice, for approval of the Members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives is
concerned

or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Special Resolution except to the extent of
their shareholding in the Company.
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A route map showing directions to reach the venue of the 36% AGM of the Company as
per the requirement of the Secretarial Standards - 2 on General Meetings is given
below.
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- ANNEXVRE "8t
MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

To the Menibers,
Marpel Private Limited.

Your Dircctors have pleasure in submitting their 36" Annual Report of the Company together with the
Audited Statements of Accounts for the vear ended 31%March 2019,

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS:

The Company’s financial performance for the vear under review along with previous year figures is given
ergurnder:

Net Sales /Income from
Buyiness Opeiations{net)
Other Income
Total Income

39,39.73,909
27,03,223
59,66,77,132

Total Expenditure

-
| Profit Lefore Exceptional Item and Tax

Exceptional Item

Profit after Exceptional Item and Before Tax
Less Toual tax expenses

Net Profit after Tax

!

Earnings per share Basic & Diluted
2. REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS :
Your Direclors wish to present the details of Business operations done during the year under review:

The rel revenrue from operations for the year ended on March 31, 201% was Rs. 68,95,01.463 as compared
to Rs. 58.66,77,132 for the previous year ended on March 31, 2018.

The Profit/ (Loss} before Exceptional Item and tax for the year ended on March 31, 2019 was
Rs. 1,97.76,464 as compared to Rs. (3,17,63,772) for the year ended on March 31, 2018. The Profit/ (Loss)
after Tax stood at Rs, 1,68,51,928 for the year ended cn March 31, 2019 as compared to Rs. (7,48,28,475)
for the previous year ended on March 31, 2018,

3. TRANSFER TO RESERVE:

No amount was 1ransfe1¢ed to.the reserves during the financial year ended 313t. March, 2018.
4. DIVIDEND :

No Dividend was declared for the current financial year due o conservation of Profits.

| S; DETAILS OF JOINT VENTURE/ ASSOCIATE OR SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES :

There are no Joint Venture/ Associate or Subsidiary Companies of the Company as on
31% March, 2019.

Certified True C
For MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED e

Directar
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6. DETAILS OF FRAUD REPORT BY AUDITOR:
As per auditors’ report, no fraud 1/s 143(12) reported by the auditor.
7. BOARD?’S COMMENT ON THE AUDITORS’ REPORT :

The observations of the Statutory Auditors, when read togsther with the relevant notes to the accounts
and accounting policies are sclf explanatory and do not call for any further comment.

8. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT :

There has been no material changes and commitment, affecting the financial pbsition of the Company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which. the financial
statements relate and the date of the report. :

9, DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL :

There has been no change in the constitution of the Board during the year under review i.e. the structure
of the Board remains the same,

10.CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

(A) Conservation of energy-

(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: The utifization of Electricity is continuously
monitored and steps are taken 1o reduce the consumption.

{ii) The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: Nil

(ii1) The capital investment on energy conscrvation equipments: Nil

(B) Technology abserption-

(i) the efforts made towards technology absorption:
As we are aware, Polyester Resin is at the heart of any pure polyester/TGIC and PP/Primid based

powder system. Super-durable powder systems are known to have excellent QUV weathering
properties and poor mechanical properties, The Automotive industry is slowly moving towards
Powder Paints s its final top coat for small Vehicles. Marpol has done extensive research in
creating a Super ~Durable resin with excellent mechanical and weathering properties. Marpa] is
the only Company in the world today that has the capability of manufacturing Pure Polyester
Super Durable Resin with excellent mechanical properties (passing more than 184 kg/cm ASTM
on & white system) and excellent retention of gloss at 20 degrees (more than 80% retention of gloss
under stringent QUV B313 exposure of 500 hours). This project was specifically undertaken for
Tata Motors Dharwad, India, where we have succeeded in becoming a key vendor for supply of
the PP Super-durable powder.

(it} the benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution:
The Automotive industry in India is growing at a fast pace. The need for high quality powder
systems has significantly increased, as a result, we have focused on creating cost effective high
end powders for automotive component manufacturers such as Gabriei India Ltd. {Anand Graup),
BMW motorrad through TVS Motors etc. In order to achieve cost effective quality powder
systems, we have further improved our PP TGIC (93/7) resin to pass the stringent 100 kg/em
ASTM impact in our regular pure polyester powder systems without affecting the cost structure of
the resin system. This has helped us provide better quality products to the high end Automotive

market at a very competitive price.




(i) in case of imported technalogy '(imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning
of the financial year) : NA

MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED

(a) the details of technology imported: No technology is imported however equipments are
imported on a regular basis,

(b) the year of import: NA

{c) whether the technology been fully absorbed: NA

{d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof: NA

and
(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Nil

11. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The total imports during the financial year ended 31st March, 2019 were Rs.12,74,72,756/-
compared to Rs.16,87,69,716/- during the last financial year. The total earning in foreign current
during the firancial year was Rs. 15,95,633/- as compared to Rs. 31318/~ during the previous

financial year.

12. STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK
MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY:

The Company does not have any Risk Management Policy as the elements of risks threatening the
Company’s existence are very minimal. Necessary internal checks and controls are duly instailed.
The manapgement reviews these checks and controls with reference to their findings and
accordingly remedial actions are taken by the Management in the best interests of the Company
and its employees and stakeholders. {n the opinion of the Board of Diirectors there are no elements
of risi currently which may threaten the existence of the Company.

13. DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON
ITS CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES:

The Company has not developed and smplemented any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives
os the said prowsmns are niot applicable.

14, PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER
SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 :

There are no Loans / Advances , Guarantees or Investments made under section 186 of the
Companies Act 2013,

15. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED
PARTIES:

There were no Related party transactions entered into during the financial year on arm’s length
basis 2nd were in ordinary course of business. There are no materially significant related party
transactions made by the Company which may have potential conflict with the interest of the
Company. As per Annexure-C in Form AOQC-2.

There are no material related party transactions which are not in ordinary course of business or
which are not on arm’s length basis and hence there is no information to be provided as required
under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies

{Accounts) Ruies, 2014.

16. COMPANY'S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF
REMUNERATION A5D DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES

The provisions of Section 178(1) relating to constitution of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee are not applicable to the Company and hence the Company has not devised any policy
relating to appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration, Directors
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qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and other related matters as provided
under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The extracts of Annual Return pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the
Companies (Management and administration) Rules, 2014 is furnished in Annexuvre A in Form

MGT-9 and is attached to this Report.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS CONDUCTED DURING THE YEAR UNDER
REVIEW : _

During the year 2018-19 under review, 6 Board meetings were held on April 7, 2018,
Aprii 20, 2018, June 27, 2018, September 27, 2018, December 24, 2018 and January 30, 2019.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT :

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby
submits its responsibility Statement:—

(8) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

{(b) The Directors had selected such accounling policies and appiied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give 2 true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the Profit of the company for

that peried;

(c) The Directors had taken proper and svff' cient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

{d) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable Jaws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

DETAIL OF FRAUD AS PER AUDITORS REPORT :

There is no fraud in the Company during the F.Y. ended 3[st March,2019. This is also being
supported by the report of the auditors of the Company as no fraud has been reported in their audit
report for the F.Y., ended 31st March, 2019.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES :

The Company does not have aﬁy Subsidiary, Joint venture or Associate Company.

DEPOSITS :

*The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS :

The provisions of Section 149 pertaining to the appointment of Independent Directors do not apply
to our Cempany.

DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDIZG VIGIL
MECHANISM :

The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule § and 7 of the
Companies {Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.
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25, DETAILS OF SIG.NIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE

26.

7.

28.

9.

30.

31

32,

REGULATORS OR COURTS:

There are no significant material orders passed by the courts/regulators or tribunals impacting the
going concern status and company’s eperations in future,

SHARES :

A. Buy back of securities

The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.
B. Sweat equity

The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.
C. Bonus shares

No Bonuy Shares were issued during the year under review.

D. Empioyees Stock Option Plan

The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to the employees,

EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, RESERVATIONS OR
ADYERSE REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS MADE BY THE AUDITORS :

There were no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors in their report.
CONSTITUTION OF COMMITYTEL - SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE :

The Cempany has constituted committee under the sexual herassment of women at workplace
(prevention, prohibition and Redressal} Act, 2013 and However, company has complied with the

provisians of the same.

COST RECORD :

The provision of Cast audit as per section 148 applicable on the Company and company has
maintained proper records and account of the same as required under the act.

STATUTORY AUDITOR :

M/s. Ganesh Daivajna & Co., Chartered Accountants(Firm Registration No. 103054W), being the
statutory auditors of the Company shall be helding office until the conclusion of the sixth Annual
General Meeting of the Company ending on March 31, 2024,

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :

Cempany doesn’ have any subsidiaries so there is no need to prepare consolidated financial
statement for the F. Y. 2018-19.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES :

No employee was, in receipt of remuneration in exeess of the iimits prescribed under Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies {Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel}
Rules, 2014 and hence the prescribed information not required to be given,
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33. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS :

Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to Bankers, Employees, Business Associates,
Auditor, and various Government Authorities for their continued suppori extended to the

Company.
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED

P.D Pai
Chairman
DIN: 08115481

Date : April 26,2019
Place: Margao, Goa
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Annexure-A
Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN , I
‘ as on the financial year ended on 31/03/2019
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management
‘ and Administration) Rules, 20141

L REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

| CIN: U24222GA1983PTC000532 1
i Registration Date 05/04/1983
iii. | Name of the Company Marpo] Private Limited
| v, Category / Sub-Category of the Corapany Limited by Shares
Company ,
-v. | Address of the Registered office and | 1st Floor, Panandiker Chambers, M.L. Furtado
contact details Road, Margao, Goa - 403601,
Tel +91 8322713056
Fax +01 832 2733124
: Emait:- marpol{@marpolind.com
vi. | Whether listed company: NO
Vil Name, Address and Contact defails of | NA
J Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

[1. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be

stated:-
_JSL.No. | Name and Description of main NIC Code of the Y to total furnover of
products / services Product/ service the company
I Manufacturers of Powder Coatings | 2022 | 100% ' _]

II1. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

S [NAMEAND  [ONGLN HOLDING/ | %of | Applicable
No. | ADDRESS OF SUBSIDIARY/ | shares | Section
THE COMPANY ‘ ASSOCIATE held
| Kansai Nerolac L24202MH1920PLC0008 | Holding 100 2(46)
Paints Ltd. 25

Nerolac House,
Ganpatrag Kadam
Marg,

Lower Parel,
Mumbai-400013.
Cantact No: 022-
2499-2807




1V, SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup és percentage of Tatai

Equity) ‘
, i} Category-wise Share Holding : |
; ) .
Category of | No. of Shares held at the beginning'of} No. of Shares held at the end of the | %
Shareholders | theyear . year Chan
ge
duria
g the
year
Demat | Physiea | Total | % of | Demat | Physical | Total | % of
' 1 Total : Total
Shares | Shar
' £s
A. Promoters | - }
(1) Indian
g) Individual/ |- - - - . 1135000 | 113500 | 37.89 | -
HUF 0
i) Central Govt - - - T ‘ - - - - .
{) State Govt - - - . - - - - .
J) Bodies Corp. | - 2995200 § 299520 1 100.00 1080000 { 108000 | 36.06 { -
' 0 0
i
i) Banks / Fl - - - - - - - - -
| k) Banks/F J
‘ 1) Any Cther.... | - - - - - - . - .
Sub-total . 2995200 : 299520 | 100,08 | - 2215000 | 221500 | 73.95 | -
(A} (1:- 0 ¢
' {2)Foreign | - - ; ; )
a) IRls - - - - - - LTI00G. ¢ 113000 1371 |-
Individuals '
b) Other - - - - - - - -
Individuals ) ' ,
¢) Bodies Corp. | - - - - - 669200 1 669200 ; 22.34 | -
d) Banks/F1 ;- - - - - - . - -
e) Any - - - - - - R .
Other..., l




Sub-total {A)
-

Total
shareholding

of Promoter
(ANTHA)2)

- 780200 | 780200

26,05 [ - J

B. Public
Shareholding
I, Institutions

a) Mutual
Funds

b) Banks / 1

¢) Central Govt

@) State Govi(s)

]

2} Yenture
Capital Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

2) Flls

11} Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds

i} Others
(specify)

Sub-total
(B)(1)=-

U

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.
1) Indian

i) Overseas

b Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding
nomina} share
capital uptoRs.
| fakh

i} Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital in
excess of Rs |
lakh

¢) Others
(specify)




Sub-tofal - -
(B)(2):-

Total Public
Sharehoiding
(By=(BX(1)*
(B)(2}

C. Shares held
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs

(A+B+C)

Grand Total - 2995200

0

209520 1 100 -

29951200 | 29952

00

100 -

(it) Shareholding of Promaters

No {sName the year

S| | Shareholder” | Sharehoiding at the beginning of

year

Share holding at the end of the

No.of -
Shares

% of
totai

‘Shares

of the
compan
Y

%of Shares | No. of
Pledged/ | Shares
encumbered
tototal
shares

% of
total
Sharss
of the
compa
ny

%of Shares
Pledged /
encumbered
to total
shares

%
change
in
share
holding
during
the

vear

1. | Kansai
Nerolac
Paints
Limited

Atthe -
beginning of
the year

- 2995200

100

Atthe end of { 2995200
the year

100 .

Total 2995200

100

- 2995200

100




(iti} Change in Promoters’ Sharcholding (please specify, if there is no change)

7

| S, Name of the | Shareholding at Datewise increase/ Cumulative Shareholding
No. |shareholders | the beginning of decrease in during the year
' the year (01-04- shareholding during
2018Y At theend | the year
of the year the end
of the year (31-03-
2019)
No.of | %of Date Reason for No.of | % of total
shares | total increase/ shares | sharesofthe
shares decrease gompany
of the
compan
Y
1. Shanu
Atmaram Pai
Panandiker 1= e
Atthe 55200 1.64 07.04.20 | Transfer of - -
beginning of 18 shares to
the year Kansai
Nerolac Paints
Ltd
Attheendof |- -
the year
2. Ramchandra
Pal
Panandiker
(HUF)
Atthe 268800 | 8.57 07.04.20 | Transfer of - -
beginning of 18 shares to
the year Kansai
Nerclac Paints
Ltd
Attheendof |- -
the year
3 Shanu Pai
Panandiker
(HUF)
At the 268800 | 8.97 07.04.20 | Transfer of - -
beginning of 18 shares to
the year Kansai
' Nerolac Paints
Ltd
Attheendof |- -
the year
4, Vishwanath
Pai
Panandiker
(HUF)




|

Atthe 360000 112.02 07.04.20 | Transfer of - -
beginning of I8 shares to }
the year Kansaj
Nerolac Paints )
itd
Attheendof |- - :
the year (
Kamlesh Pai
Panandiker
| (BUF)
Atthe 399200 {1333 1 07.04.20 | Trassfer of -
beginning of 18 shares 10
' the year Kansai
Nerolac Paints
I.td
Attheendof |- -
the year
Stambhu Pai
Panandiker
-| (HUF)
At the 270000 | 9.01 07.04.20 ! Transfer of
beginning of - 18 shares fo
the year Kansai
: Nerclac Paints
Ltd
Attheend of -
the vear
Rohan R Pai
Panandiker
Atthe 25800 1 0.86 07.04.20 | Transfer of -
beginning of 1§ shares to
the year Kansai
Nerolac Paints
Lid
Attheendof |- -
the year
Rohit R Pai
Panandiker
Atthe 25800 0.86 07.04.20 | Transfer of
beginning of 18 25799 share,
the year ' to Kansai
Nerolac Paints
Ltd
(7.04.20 | Transfer of |
18 share fo
Kansai
Nerolac Paints
Ltd jointly
held with
Mr. Prashant
Pai
Attheendof |- -
the year




the year

g, Ravi V Pai
Panandiker
Atthe 12000 0.40 07.04.20 | Transfer of P
beginning of | 18 shares to
the year Kansai
Nerclac Paints
. Lid
Attheendof |- - |
the year
10, Rahool Pai -
Panandiker
At the 12000 0.40 07.04.20 | Transfer of -
beginning of 18 shares fo
the year Kansai
Nerolac Paints
|- Itd
Attheend of -
. { the year
1. Raj S Pai
Panandiker
Atthe 12000 0.40 07.04.20 | Transfer of - -
| beginning of 18 shares to
the year Kansai
Nerolac Paints
: Ltd
Atthe end of
the year
12, Manisha Pai
Panandiker
Atthe 12000 . 0.40 07.04.20 | Transfer of - -
beginning of 18 shares to
the year Kansai
. Nerolac Paints
Lid
Attheend of |- -
- the year .
13. Remchandra
Paj
Panandiker
Trading &
Investment
Company Pvt.
Ltd.
Atthe 198000 | 6.61 07.04.20 | Transfer of - -
beginning of 18 sharesto
the year Kansai
Nerolac Paints
Lid
Attheendof |- -




14, Atmaram Pai
Panandiker
Trading &
[nvestment
Compuny
Private
Limited ‘
Atthe 182400 |6.09 07.04.20 | Transfer of -
beginning of 18 shares to
the vear Kansai
Nerolac Paints
Ltd
Attheendof |- -
the year
15. Vishwanath
Pai
Panandiker
Trading &
investment
Company Pyt
Lid.
Atthe 259200 | 8.65 07.04.20 | Transfer of
beginning of 18 shares to
the year - Kansai .
Nerolac Paints
Lid
| Attheend of -
the year
16. Shanu Pai -
Panandiker
Trading &
[nvestment
Compary Pvt.
Ltd.
Atthe | 198000 | 6.61 07.04.20 | Transfer of
beginning of 18 shares-fo -
the year Kansai
Nerolac Paints
Ltd
Attheend of |- -
the year
17. Veda Pai
Panandiker
Trading &
Investment
Company Pvt.
Ltd.
At the 242400 | 8.09 07.04.20 | Transfer of
beginning of 18 shares 0
.the year i - . Kangai
' Neralac Paints

Ltd




—
8

At the end of - [ { |
the year | !
18, | Kunda S, Pai ’ ]
I Panandiker : J
Atthe 500 0.02  [07.0420 | Transferof |- ] -
beginning of 8 shares to
the year Kansai J
Nerolac Paints
Ltd
At the end of
the year
19, Anjali Pai
| Panendiker
At the 1500 0.02 07.04.20 | Transfer of -
beginning of 18 shares to
the year Kansai
Nerolac Paints
Lid
Attheendof |- -
the vear
20, Veda K. Pai
' Panandiker .
Atthe 500 0.02 07.04.20 | Transfer of .
beginning of 18 shares to
the year Kansai
Nerolac Paints
| Lud
Attheend of -
the vear
21, | KayaK Pai
Panandiker
Atthe 500 0.02 07.04.20 | Transfer of - -
beginning of ' 1R shares 1o
the year Kansai
Nerolac Paints
Ltd
Atthe end of
the year
22, Mangala Pai
Panandiker .
At the 500 .02 070420 | Transferof |- -
beginning of 18 shares to
the year Kansai
Nerolac Paints
Ltd
Attheendof |- - '
the year
23 Rajani Pai
Panandiker
Atthe . 28100 1 0.94 07.04.20 | Transfer of - -
beginning 6f | 18 shares to
the year Kansai
Nerolac Paints
Lid




T T
Attheend of ? ] ]
the year f
24. Atman S Pai 1 '
Panandiker i
Atthe [1000  [0.03  [07.04.20 | Transferof | - o
beginning of : 18 shares to
the year Kansai
‘ Nerolac Paints
Lid
Attheendof |- - 7
the veer
25, Vishwanath-
Pai
Panandiker .
Atthe 54000 1.80 07.04.20 | Transfer of -
beginning of- 18 shares to
| the year Kansai
Nerolac Paints
Ltd
Attheendof |- -
the yzar
26. Kamiesh Pai |
Panandiker . :
Atthe 54000- ¢ 1.B0 07.04.20 { Trensferof |-
beginning of - 18 shares to
the year Kansai
Nerolac Paints
Ltd
Attheendof |- ,
the year -
27. Shambhuy Pai
Panandiker
Atthe’ | 54000 1.80 07.04.20 | Transfer of -
beginning of 18 shares to
the year Kansai
Nerolac Paints
] Ltd
Attheend of
the year
28. Kansai
Nerolac Paints
Limited
At the - - 07.04.20 | Transfer of
beginning of 18 foliowing
the year shares from
i) Shanu
Atmaram Pai
Panandiker -
55200
i)
Ramchandra
Pai




Panandiker
(HUF) -
268800

iii) Shanu Pai
Panandiker
(HUF)- 268800
iv)
Vishwanath
Pai
Panandiker
(HUF) -
360000

| v} Kamlesh

| Pai

Panandiker
(HUE) -
399200 -

vi) Shambhu,
Pai

" | Panandiker

(HUF) -
270000

vii) Rohan R
Pai
Panandiker -

+ .| 25800

viii} Rohit R
Pai
Panandiker -
25800
ix) Ravi V Pai
Panandiker -
12000
x) Rahool Pai
Panandiker -
12000
xi) Raj S Pai
Panandiker -
12000
xi) Manisha
Pai
Panandiker -
12000
xii}
Ramchandra
Pai
Panandiker
Trading &
Investment
Company -
198000
xiff) Atmaram
Pai '
Panandiker
Trading &
Investment




Company
Private
Lirnited -
182400

xiv}
Vishwanath
Pai
Panandiker
Trading &
Investment
Company Pvt.
Ltd. - 259200
xv) Shanu Pai
Panandiker
Trading &
Investment
Company Pvi.
Ltd. - 198000
xvi) Veda Pai
Panandiker
Trading &
Investment
Company Pvt.
Lid. - 242400
xvii) Kunda S.
. Pai
Panandiker-
500

xviti) Anjali
Pai
Panandiker -
500

xix} Veda K.
Pai
Panandiker -
500 xx) Kaya
K Pai
Panandiker-
500 xxd)
Mangala Pai
Pananciker -
500 xxii) 500
xxiif) Rajani
Pai
Panandiker -
28100

¥xiv) Atman 5
Pai
Panandiker -
1000

XXV}
Vishwanath
Pai
Panandiker -
54000

xxvi) Kamlesh




—l ' Pai

Panandiker -
54000
xxvii)
Shambhu Pai
Panandiker -
54000

|

L

Attheendof | 2995200 i 100.00

the year

{iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of
GDRs and ADKs): .

.Cumulative Sharcholding ]

during the year

Shareholding at the beginning
of the vear

S1. No.

% of total No. of shares | % of total

For Each of the
Top 10
Shareholders

No. of shares

shares of the
company

shares of the
company

At the beginning | NIL - - -

of the vear

Date wise NIL
Increase/
Decrease in
Share holding
during the vear
specifying the
reasons for
increase /
decrease (e.8.

| allotment /
transfer / boaus /
sweat equity
etc):

At the End of NIL
the year { or on
the date of
separation, if
separated during

the year) :
i




—_—
- & |

(v} Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

81 No. ] Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
For Each of the No. of shares | % of total No. of shares | % of total
Directors and KMP shares of the shares of the
company company
1. Rohit Pai Panandiker | .
At the beginning of the | 25800 086 25800 0.86
year . R | :
Date wise Increase /
Decrease in Share
holding during the year
_ specifying the reasons ' _ |
: for increase / decrease i |
' {e.g. aliotment / transfer
[ bonus / sweat equity
ete):
Transfer of 25799
1 shares to Kansai ‘ _
Nerolac Paints Limited :
on August 7, 2018
Transfer of 1 share to
Kaonsai Nerolac Paints
i Lirnited jointly held
;1" with Mr. Prashant Pai
r L on August 7, 2018
. ' |
& i At the end of the year J 7- e -
! L ‘ I :
V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/acerued buf not due for payment
Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits (in Rs.) | Total
excluding . Loans (in Rs.) Indebtedness (in
‘ deposits (in Rs.) Rs.) 7
Indebiedness at ‘
the beginning of | 14,96,14961.00 | NIL - 14,96,14,561-
the financial :
year
A Ti) Principel 14,96,14,961.00 14,96,14,561
Amount
ii) Interest due but | NIL ‘ NIL
9‘/ not paid
iii) Interest
acerued but not
due




iR

44 Commission
- as % of profit

| |

g
| |

Total {+ik+ii) LI4,96,I4,961

00 J

! 14,96,14,961 f

Thange in
Indebtedress
during the
financial year
1 Addition
{1 Reduction

NIL

3,68,11,090.00 | —

Net Change 75,37,171.00

T537,177.00

Indebtedness at
the ‘
end of the NIL
financial year
i} Principal” -
Amount _
it) Interest due but
not paid

ii1) Interest
accrued but not
due

11,28,03,871

NIL

00 [ NIL

]
3,68,11,00. {J
|
|

11,28,03,871.00

L’l‘otai (i+iiHiii)

11,28,03,871,

00

i

11,28,03,871.00

VL REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

T

Sr. Particulars of
no. Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/
Manager

1 Total Amount

Rokit Pai Panandiker

1. Gross salary

(a) Salary zs per
provisions contained
in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of

| perquisites w's 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c} Profits in lieu of
salary under section
17(3) Income-fax Act,
1961

Rs.22,53,000

Rs. 22,353,000

]

2 Stock Option

3 Sweat Equity




[ - others, specify... f

}

{HRA, LTA,

5 Others, please specify] Rs. 1,356,120
Contribution. To P.F,

Rs. 1,56,120

Rs, 24,09,120

L Medical Expenses f

r Total

24,069,120

NIL

' " | Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other directors:

e
| 82

no.

Fotal ‘
1 Amount

Fr. [ Particulars of Remuneration | Name of Directors

IR . NIL
Independent Directors

Fee for attending board /
committee meetings
Coramissian

Others, please specify

| Total (1)

.- NIL
Otber Non-Executive
Direstors

Fee for attending board /
commitiee meetings
Commission

Others, please specify

Total 2) NIL

Totai (B)=(1+2) NIL

Totai Managerial NIL
Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act |




C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN
MD/MANAGER/WTD

8L
no.

Particulars of |
Renuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO

‘Company ] CFO

Secretary

Total

Gross salary
(a) Salary as
per provisions
contained in
section 17(1)

tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of
perquisites u/s
17%2) Income-
tax Act, 1961 .
{c) Profits in
lieu of salary
under section .
1703} Income-
ax -
Act, 1961

of the Income- |-

NIL

Stock Option.

NL

NIL | NIL

Sweat Equity

NIL-

NIL AN

.| Commission

-as%of

profit
- others,
specify...

INIL

TAIL NIL

Others, please
specify

NIL

NIL NIL

Total

April 26,2019
Margao, Goa

e

A
VI PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

There were no penalties, ponishments, compounding of offences for the year ended March 31, 2019.

For and on behalf of the Board

M Paj

Chairman
DIN: 08115481




ANNEXURE B- form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to-sub-section {3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies {Accounts)

Ruies, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries or associate
companies or joint ventures

Part ASubsidiaries

(information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

The Company does not have any Subsidiary as on the Financial year ended 31" March, 2019

1.

16,

Si. No.
Name of the subsidiary
The date Sihc‘e when subsidiary wasacquired

Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company’s reporting
period.

Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date of the relevant Financial year in the
case of foreign subsidiaries. ‘ : )

Share capital

Reserves andsurplus

Total assets

Total Liabilities
fnvestments
Turnover
Profit before taxation
Provision for taxation
Profit after taxation
Proposed Dividend

Extent of shareholding (inpercentage)

Notes: The following information shali be furnished at the end of the statement:

M

2

Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations
Names of subsidiaries which have been liguidated or soid during the year.




Part B Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3} of the Companies Act, 2013 refated to Associate
Companies and Joint Ventures

45t

The Company does not have any Associates and/ or Joint Ventures as on the Financial year ended 31
March, 2019 '

Name of Associates or JointVentures . Name 1 Name 2 Name 3

1. Latest audited Balance SheetDate

2. Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was
associated or acquired

3. Shares of Assaciate or Joint Ventures held by the
company on the year end

No.

mount of Investment in Associates or Joint Venture

Extent of Holding {in percentage)

4, Description of how there is significant infiuence

5. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not
consolidated

6. Networth attributable to shareholding as per latest
audited Balance Sheet

7. Profit or Loss for the year

i. Considered in Cansolidation

ii. Not Considered inConsolidation

. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations.

2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year,

Note: This Form is to he certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be certified”.
For and on behalf of the Board

Marpol Private Limited

Chairman
DIN: 08115481

—

Date : Aprii 26, 2019
Place: Margao, Goa

e e e



ANNEXURE C- FORM NO. AQC.2

(Pursuant to clavse (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso

thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangemenis or trénsactions not at arm's length basis : NA

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/trémsactions

{c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions

(d) Salient térins of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value,
if any ‘ : )

(¢) Justification for entering into such Gontracts or arrangements or transactions

(f) Date of approval by the Board

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any:

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required
under first proviso to section 183

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis : NIL

For and on behalf of the Board
Marpol Private Limited

P.D Pai

Chairman
DIN: 08115481

Margao, Goa, April 26, 2019

T e e i e e



1.

1

“The Objects for which the Compeny is established ate:

THE COMPANIES ACT, 195
COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

MEMGRANDUM OF ASSOCIATION
' OF

MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED

The name of the Company is MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED.

The Registered Oﬁ‘ ce of the Company will be situsted in the Union Territory of Gog, Daman
and Diu, -

{A) THE MAIN OBJECTS TO BE PURSUED BY THE COMPANY .

ONITS INCORPORATION:-

To maﬁut‘ac’azrﬂ, mix, i:;uy, st mfﬁe. prepare, impart, export and carry on the business in

Alkyd Resins, Acrylic Resins, Polyester Resins, Polyurethane, Silicone, F luropolymes,
Polycarbonate, [socynate Alkyds, Powder coating Paints, Epoxies, Ac:ylicé, epaxy polyester

- paints; tlectrophoretic paints, highsolid coatings, weter boume coanngs, water reducibla

cagtings snd non-aquects dizpersions.

i To buy, manufacture, mix, seff refie, prepare, import, export, and to carry on any business in

mminerals, methylated and-rectified apirits, dry or other colowrs, raw materials, pigments,
dyes, paints, synthetic paints and thinners, coloured or other cements, vamishes, synthetic
resing, enamels, lzcquers, distemnpers, disinfectants, oil, wood preservative, fruit or vegetable
or other preservatives, printings ard marking inks, writing inks, pofishes, crayons, powders,
tlectroplating, abrasive and its chemicals, she dressing, greases, vasifines, creams, glos,
getatine, and other glue preparations.

To refine, seil, mix, prepare for market, import, export and manufactore, prepare and gxtract,
all kinds of turpentine including Canada turpentine from fine larchfir, pistachic and other

trees and to prepare various oils, chemicals, driigs and different other products from the same,

To manufacture, produce, refine, process, formalate, buy, sell, export, import, or otherwise
deal in alf types of heavy and light chemicals, chemical elements gnd compounds, including
withont limiting the generality of the foregoing, laboratory, end scientific chemicak If any
nture used or capeble of being used in the paint industry, aaricultural chemicals, fertilisers,
petro-chemicals, industris chemticals of any mixtures, derivatives and compounds thersof
and its deal in all types of chemicels, phamacenticals and biological preparations, drugs,
viccines, injections, acids, alcohols, wine or wine syrups, cordials, mineral watess, Tiquors,
S0aPS5, regtorative tonics, antiseptic, antiseptic catton and dressing and other ailied products
any by-products therof, .




Tao carry on the business zs manufacturers and dealers in Pharmaceutical, medical,
Chemical, industrial and other prepsrative and articles, compounds, oils, paims,
pigments and varnishes, drugs, dyeware and dealers in proprietary articles of alf kinds of
electrical, chemicals, photographical, surgical and scientific apparates and

materials.

(B) OBIECTS INCIDENTAL OR ANCILLARY TO THE ATTAINMENT OF THE

MAIN OBIJECTS:
To carry on any othter business in sonnection wnh tha abovc mcntloned business that is at
any time costomary or usually carried on in comnection: {hemmth or incigental

thereto.

To acquire and undertake the whole or any part of :the goodwill, business, concerm,

.- undertaking, properties, rights, assats, and Habilities from any individual, firm, association,

teust, society, compaay or corporation carrying on any business which this Company is
authorised to carry on or purchase any property suitzble for the purpose of this Company

" and 1o pay for the same by shares in or debentures of this Company or by cash or in

satisfaction of the Company’s claim, loans, advances or otherwise or partially in one way
and pertially in the other way and to conduct, expand and develop and wind up, liquidate
such business and purchase and e taks steps for the acquisition of extstmg or new ficences

in connection with any such business. :
To acquire by purchase or otherwise or other build, construct, alter, maintain, enlarge,
pull down, demolish, remove, or replade and to work, manage and controd any lands,
buildings. offices, factories, mills, ships, machinery, engines, roadways, tramways,
sidings, bridges, wharves reservoirs, water courses, -glectric works, and other works and
canvenienges which may seem. calculsted- direatly or indirectly to zdvance the
interests of fhe Company and to join with atty other. person or company in doing any of
these things.

To acquire from sy person or campany within.or out of Jadia technical information

" knowhow, processes, engineering, manufacturing and operating data, plans, lay-outs and

blue prints, useful for any of the business of the Company and to acquire any grant of
licence and other rights and benefits ifi the fozggoing matters end things.

To sell, exchange, mortgage, let on lease, eyaity of tribute, gram Heences, easements,
options and cthet rights over and in any other manner deal with or dispose of the whole or
any of the undertakings, property, assets, rights and effects of the Company for such
consideration as may be thought fit and in particular for stocks or shares, whether fully or

partly pgid up, or securities of any other company.,

To pay for any rights or property acquired by the Company and to remutierate any person
or company rendeting services to the Company either by cash payment or by allotment to
him or them of shares or securities of the Ccmpan}f a5 paid up in full or in part or
otherwige.

To draw, make, accept, endorse, discount, negotiate, exocute, and issue Bills of Exchange,
Promissory Notes, Bills of Lending, Warrants debentures and other negﬂtmble ot transfer

‘able ipstroments OF secunnes

To undertake financial and commercial dbhgattm}s, transactions and opmtwns of all kinds
in connection with any of the business of the Company. S
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 313T MARCH, 2019

9

Significant Accounting Policies

The notes refarred to above form an integzal part of
Financial Statements ‘

As per our Repors of even date
For Ganesh Daivajna & Co.

Naveen G Daivaiiza

M. No. 126231
Place : Margac , Goa

Date : 26th April 2619

Director
DiN - 00558055

Place * Margao , Goa

Date 26th Aprif 2019

Director
DIN - 08105268

in Rupeés
As at As at )
Note 315t March, 2018 315t March, 2018
ASSETS
Non—current Assets
Property, Piant and Equipment 2 4,08,56,876 4,98,22,131
Caphal Work-in-progress 1,62,53,206 -
Other intangible Assets 3 7,586,405 5,86,474
5,79,06,487 5.08.08.604
Finarcial Assets:
Invéstments 4 - 5,00,000
- 5,00,000
Other Non-current Assets 3 1,62,016 20,585,247
“Total Non-current Assets 5.80,68503 5,33,63,851
Current Assets
|nventories § 12,69,39,564 8,8633,753
Financial Assets: )
-Trade Recaivables 7 15,65,61,249 12,08,11,416
Cash and Cash Equi\_.'alents‘ B 7.67.541 42727218
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash 8 32,73,054 16,35,340
Loans 10 - 10,987,356 18,56,412 _
: : 16,16,99,201 16,73,30,383
Other Current Assels 1 75,18,472 1,01,54,567
Total Current Assets 29,61,57,236 26,81,18.704
Totzl Assets 35,42,25,73% 31,84,82,555
] P
ECUITY AND LIABILITIES
 Equity
Equity Share Capital 12 2,99,52 000 2,98,52,000
Reserves and Surplus 13 6,26,57,091 4,58,05,164
i Total Equity 9,26,09,091 75757164
Liabilities
Non-current Liabilities
Financial Lizbilitias: . .
Borrowings . 14 - 10,23,811
Deferred Tax Liabifities (Net) 15 2,03,154 16,78,618
Total Non-current Liabilities 2,03,154 27,902,428
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities: _
Borrowings 16 10,50.05.546 14,85.91,150
Trade Payables ) 17 ] 14,52,29,344 8,37,25,690
Other Financial Lizbilities 18 32,94,339 30,94,339
© 25.35.29.230 23,54.11,179
Other Current Liabilities 19 46,313,466 45,64,695
Provisions 20 12,50,798 10,47,08%
Total Current Liabilities 26,14,13,454 24,10,22,962
Total Liabilitles 26,16,16,648 243725391
Total Equity and Lizbilities 35,42,25,739 . 31,94,82 555
e o e
VAT '
/{ Q €N
| -

P.D. Pai
Director
DIN - 08113481



MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED . ' )
- STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 315T MARCH, 2019 :

In Rupees
Note Period ended Year ended
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Inconie . . ‘
Revenue from Oparations 21 68,90,38,289 59.39,73,90¢
Other Income 22 463,175 27,03,223
Total Income 68,95,01,463 _ 59,66,77,132
Expenses o
Cost of Materials Consumed - 23 - 51,06,50,202 39,02,71,619
Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in~ .
trade and Work-in-progress ‘ . 24 (1,32,62,224) 1,44,57,195
Excise Duty on Sale of Goods - 1,89,44,223
Employee Ranefits Expense 25 4,89,01,943 6,05,81,052
Finance Costs 95,11,242 1,29,05,635
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 26 1,00,42,011 1,04,58,504
Other Expenses 27 10,38,81,825 ' . 12,08,22,697-
fotal Expenses ' 66,97,25,000 62,84,40;925
Profit/(Loss) Befare Exceptional Item and Tax ],97,?6,4'64 (3,17,63,793)
Exceptional item - 4,33,08,587
Profit{{Loss) After Exceptional Item and Before Tax 1,97,76,464 {7,50,72,379)
Tax Expense
Current Tax : 44,00,000 -
"Defarrad Tax (14,75,464) (2,43,883}
Total Tax Expense 29,24,536 (2,43,883)
Profit/(Loss) for the Year 1,68,51,928 ) {7.48,28,496)
Earnings per Share;
Basic and Diluted (24.98)
Significant Accounting Policles 1

The notes referred to above form an integral part of
Financial Statements

As per our Report of even date
For Ganesh Daivaina & Co. or and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants R ' ~

ohit Pai Panandiker G.¥. Govindakgjan  P.D. Pai

v

Partner Director Director Director
M. No. 126231 DIN - 00559055 DIN - 08105268 DIN - 08115481
Place : Margac , Goa e ' Place : Margao , Goa

Date : 26th Apri{ 2018 Date : 26th April 2019




MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A — Equity Share Capital

) : Rs. in Crores
Bafance as at 1st April, 2018 2,99,52,000
Changes in Equity Share Capital during 2018-2019 -
Balance as at 31st December, 2018 - 2,95,52,000
B - Other Equify

Rs. in Crores
General Reéerve Retained-Earnings Totai
Balance as at 1st April, 2018 83,92,356 3,74,10,430 4,58,02,786
Total Comprehensive Income for thé Year Tl 1,68,51,928 1,68,51,928
Transaction with Owners in their Capacity as Owners,

{recorded directly in equity

_ Dividends - - -

Dividend Distribution Tax - - -
Transfer from Retained Earnings - - -
Transfer to General Reserve - - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 83,92,356 5,42,62,357 6,26,54,713




MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED
STANDALONE STATEMENT CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2019

Year ended
31st March, 2019

Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Profit Before Tax 1,97,76,463.50
Adju;tménts for:

Depreciation and Amortisation Expanses 1,00,42,011.00
Faif Value Gain on Financla! Instruments recognised through FYTPL

Uniealised Forelgn Exchange Galr {Net) -
Profit on Sale of Current Investments (Net) -
Interest Income (1,95,169.58)
Insurance Clzl Recelvable . (2,68,005.00}
{Profit)/Lass on Sale of Praperty, Plant and Equipment {Net) -
Provisions for Doubtful Debts and Bad Debts. -
Reversal of Indlrect Tax Provisions . -

Interest Expense 95.11,242.06
95,78,836.42
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes ' 2,93,55,300.22
{increase} In Trade and Other Receivables {3,00,10,205.39)
(Increase) I Inventorles (3,83,05,811.00)
Dacrease In Trade Payables, Other Financlal Liabilities and
Pravlsions 6,39,07,363.72
(44,08,652.67)
Cash Genesated from Operztions 2,48,46,647.55
Direct Taxes Pald (Net of Refunds) - {25,06,269.00}
Net Cash Flows generated from Oparating Actlvitles 2,24,39,878.55
Cash Fiow from lovesting Actlvities
. Purchaseof Property, Plant and Equipment and Other Intangible {9,39,652.00)
Assats (including Adjustments on Acceunt of Capltal Work-in-
progress, Capital Creditars and Capital Advances)
Payment for CWIP {1,62,53,205.50
Froceeds from Sale of Property, Flant and Equipment 32,47.906.60
Purchase of Current lnvestments -
Proceads from Sale / Redemptlon of Current Investments 5.00,006.00
Purchase of Mvestments In Subsldiarles -
Interest Received 1.95,169.58
Insurance Clalm Recelvable 2,68,005.00
Proceeds from Fixed Deposits on Maturity -
Het Cask Flews (used In} from Investing Activitlas - 1,29,81,776.52)
Lash Flows from Finanging Activities
Repayment of leng-term borrowings 4,46,09,414.63)
Interest Pald (95.11,242,05)
Tax on Proposed Dividend -
Nei Cach Flows (used In) Financlng Activities (5,41,20,656.69)
Net Increase / (Decrease) In Cash and Cash Equivalents 4.46,62,555.96
MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED
STANDALONE STATEMENT CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDER 315T MARCH, 2019 {centd.)
Year ended
31t March, 2019
Cash and Cash Equlyalents at baginning of the year, the
components being:
Cash oh Hand 45,003.39
Cheques on hand 4,26,82,211.59
Balances with Banks on Current, Mazgin and Fixad Deposit "
Accounts : 19,35,340.08
Effect of exchange rate fluctwatlan -
‘ 4,45,62,555.06
Cash and Cash Equivalenss at end of the year, the components
belng: .
Cash on Hand 61,745.70
Cheques on hand 705,795,713
Batances with Banks on Current, Margin and Fixed Deposit
Atcouats 32,73,053.97
. Effect of exchange rate fluctuation . . -
40,40,595,40
Net Increase [ {Decrease) as disclosed above {4,06,21,356.66}

As per our Report of even date n behalf of thE Board
For Ganesh Datvajna & Co.
rtered Accourtants

Req No. 103054W

[

*RORit Pa! Panandiker C.T. Govindarafan B.D. pal
Director . Director Directot
DIN - 00559055 DIN - 08105268 DIN - 08115481

Naveen G. Dalviina

o, 126231

Place: Margaa,
Date: 27th June, 2018



MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED : ' .'
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 201

Note A: Corporate Information

Marpol Private Limited (the '‘Company’) is a private limited company domiciled in india and
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act. The registered office of the Company is
located at Margao, Goa, The Company is principally engaged in the manufacturing of Powder.

The Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March; 2019 have been reviewed by
the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors at their meetings held on .

Note B:  Basis of preparation
1 Statement of compliance

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified
under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, ({the ‘Act’} and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Details-of the Company's Accounting Policies are included in Note 1,
2 Functional and Presentation currency

The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in [ndian Rupees {INR), which is aiso the
Company's functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest crores, unfess
otherwise indicated.

3 Basis of measurement

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investments in mutual funds, non-trade equity shares, bonds and provision for employee defined
benefit plans.

4 Use of estimates and judgements
Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation Uncertainty:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures as at date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of the revenuas and expenses for the years presented, The -
sstimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptiens and conditions.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing hasis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that peried, or in the period of the revision and futiire periods if the revision affects
both cusrent and future periods.

i Critical Judgments

fn the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the
following judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the
financial statements.

Discount rate used to determine the carrying amount of the Companys defined benefit
obligation.

In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management
considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currerzcms of
the post-employment benefit-obligation.




MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED , i 0
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2019
Contmgences and Commitments

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigations and other claims
against the Company. Where the potential liabilities have a low probabitity of crystallising or are
very difficult to quantify reliably, we treat them as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are
disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the financial statements. Although there can be
no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings, we do not expect them to
have a materially adverse impact on our financial position or profitability.

fi} Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future, and- other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying ameunts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

As described in Note 1(3)(c}, the Company reviews the estimated useful fives and residual values -
of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. During the current financial
year, the management determined that there were no changes to the useful lives and residual
values of the property, plant and equipment.

Allowances for Doubtful Debts

The Company makes allowances for-doubtful debts based on an assessment of the recoverability
of trade and other receivables. The identification of doubtful debts equires use of judgments and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of the trade and other receivables and doubtful debts expenses in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.

Allowances for inventories

- Management reviews the inventory age listing eon a - periodic basis. This review mvo£ves
comparison of the carrying value of the aged inventory items with the respective net realizable
value. The purpose is to ascertain whether an allewance is required to be made in the financial
statements for any obsolete and slow-moving items. Management is satisfied that adequate
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventories has baen made in the financial statements.

Liahility for Sales Return

In making judgment for lfability for sales return, the management considered the detailed criteria
for the recognition of revenue from the sale of goods set out in Ind AS 18 and in particular,
whether the Company had transferred to the buyer the significant risk and rewards of ownership
of the goods, Following the detailed quantification of the Company’s liability towards sales return,
the management is satisfied that significant risk and rewards have been transferred and that
recognition of the revenue in the current year is appropriate, in conjunction with the recogniticn
of an appropriate liahility for sales return.

Accruals for estimated product returns, which are based on historical expenence of actual sales
returns and adjustment on account of current market scenario is considered by Company 1o be
reliable estimate of future sales returns.




MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED
NQTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019

Note C: Recent Accoynting Pronouncement
Standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (*MCA") through- Companies (ndian Accounting Standards)

Amendment Rules, 2019 has notified the following new and amendments to ind AS which the

. Company has not applied as they are effective for annual peried beginning on or afier 1 April
" 2019,

Ind AS 116 ~ Leases

Ind AS 116 - Leases

The Company is required tc adept Ind AS 116, Leases from 1 April 2019. Ind AS 116 introduces
a single, en-balance sheet fease accounting madel for lessees. A Jessee recognises a right~of-
use asset representing its Hght to use the underlying asset and a fease liability répresenting its
obligation to make Jease payments, There are recogaition exemptions for short=term leases and
leases of [ow-value items, Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard - ie.
lessors continue to classify leases as finance or operating leases. It replaces existing leases
quidance, Ind AS 17, Leases, :

The Company has completed an initial assessment of the potential impact or its standafone
financial statemants but has not yet completed its detailed assessment. The guantitative impact
of adopticn of Ind AS 116 on the consolidated financiai statements in the period of initial
application is not reasonably estimable as at present. -

Foliowing impacts are expected:

- the total assets and lizbilities on the balance sheet will increase with a decrease in net total
assats, due to the depreciation of right of use assets being on a stralght-line basis whilst the
lease lizbility reduces by the principal amaunt of repayments;

~ Interest expense will increase due to the unwinding of the effective interest rate implicit in the
lease liability. Interest expense wifl be greater earlier in a Jease's life, due to the higher principal
value, causing profit variability over the term of lease. This effect may be partially mitigated due
to the number of leases held by Cochlear at various stages of their terms; and -

- operating cash flows will be higher and financing cash flows will be lower, as repayment of the
principal portion of all lease liabilities will be classified as financing activities.

In addition to the ahove, the folicwing amendments te existing standards have been issued, are
not yat effective and .are not expected to have a significant impact on the standalone financial
statements:

- Amendments to Ind AS 103, Business Combinations, and ind AS 111, joint Arrangerments: This
interpretation clarifies how an entity accounts for increasing its interast in a joint operation that
meets the definition of a business.

- Amendments to ind AS 109, Financial instruments; amendments relating to the classification of
particular prepayable financial assets '

. = Amandments to Ind AS 12, income Tdxes, clarify that ail incoma tax consequences of dividends
{including ‘payments on financial instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently
with the transactions that generated the distributable profits - Le. in profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or equity, Further Appendix C, uncertainty over income tax treatments
has been added to clarify how entities should reflect uncertainties over income tax treatments, in
particular when assessing the outcome a tax authority might reach with full knowledge and
infarmation if it were to make an examinatien. ‘

'~ Amendment to Ind AS 19, Employee Benefits - The amendment to Ind AS 19 ciarifies that on
amendment, curtaffment or settiement of a defined benefit plan, the current service cost and ret
interest for the remainder of the annual reporting period are calculated using updated actuarial
assumptions - le, consistent with the cakulation of a gain or loss on the plan amendment,
curtaiiment or settlement. This amendment alse clarifies that an entity first determines aay past
service cost, of a gain or loss on settlement, without considering the effect of the asset ceiling.
This amount is recagnized in profit or Joss. The entity then determines the effect of the asset
cefling after plan amendment, curtaiiment or settfement, Any change in that effect Is recognized
in other comprehensive income (except for amounts inciuded in net interest),

- Amendments to Ind AS 23, Borrowing Costs, clarify that the general borrowings pool used to
caleutate eligible borrowing costs excludes anly borrawings that specifically finance qualifying
assats that are still under development or construction,

- Amendments to Ind AS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures: When applying the
equity method, a non-investment entity that has'an interest in an investment entity associate or
joint venture can efect to retain the fair value accounting applied by the associate or jeint
ventyre to its subsidiaries, Venture capital and other qualifying organizations can elect to”
measure [nvestments in assoclates or joint ventures at falr value through prafit or loss instead of
applying the equity method. The amendments clarify that both these elections apply for each
investment entity asseciate or joint venture separately.




MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED i -
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2019
Note [ Significant Accounting Policies

1 Classification of Assets and Liabilities

Schedule Il to the Act, requires assets and liabilities to be classified as either Current or Non-
current,

(@) An asset shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria;

(i) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's
normal operating cycle;

({iyitis held primarily for the purpose of being traded:
(i) it is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reparting date: or

(iv) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle
a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.

(b} All assets other than current assets shall be classified as non-current.

(c) Aliability shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
§)] l:t is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;
(if) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
(ili) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

{iv) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option -
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not af_fect
its classification.

{d) All liabifities other than current liabifities shall be classified as non-current.
2 Operating Cycle ‘

An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash or cash equivalents. The Company has ascertained the operating cycle as
twelve months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and
liabilities. : :
3 Property, Plant and Equipment
(a) Recognition and Measurement

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially
measured at its cost and then carried at the cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment, if any.

The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises its purchase price, including
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and
rebates and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
hecessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. The
initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located is included in the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment.

The cost of a self-constructed item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises the cost of
materials and direct fabor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to
working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the
item and restoring the site on which it is located. :

Tangible Property, Plant and Equipment under construction are disclosed as Capital Work-in-
progress. Item of Capital Work~in-progress is carried at cost using the principles of valuation
of item of property, plant and equipment tifl it is ready for use, the manner in which intended
by management, ' s
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2019

Note lIl: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.)

3 Property, Plant and Equipment (contd.)

{b) Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is prouable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

{c) Depreciation

The depreciable amount of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is allocated on a
systematic basis over its useful life. The Company provides depreciation on the straight line
method. The Company believes that straight line method reflects the pattern in which the
asset's future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Company. Based on
internal technical evaluation, the management believes useful lives of the assets are
appropriate. The depreciation method is reviewed at least at each financial year-end and, if
there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future
economic benefits embodied in the asset, the method is changed to reflect the changed
pattern. Such a change Is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate in accordance
with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Ecuipment with a cost that is significant in relation
to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss unfess it is includad in the carrying amount of another asset.

The residual value and the useful life of an asset is reviewed at least at each financial year-end
and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the change(s) is accounted for as a change
fn an accounting estimate in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors, The estimated -useful fives for the current and comparative
periods are as follows:

Useful Lives - Useful Lives
{in years) (in years)
Asset Class - as per Companies | - as estimated by

Act, 2013 the Company
Buildings 30-60 " 30-60
Plant and Equipments 10-20 70-25
Furniture and Fixtures 10 10
Vehicles 10 10
Office Equipments 5 5
Computers 3-6 3-6
Assets for Scientific Research 10-20 20
Assats on Operating Lease NA 5

Depreciation on additions (disposals} is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date
on which asset is ready for use (disposed off}.

Depreciation charge for the year is displayed as depreciation on the face of Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Leasehold lands and leasehold improvements are amortised over the primary period of lease.

{d) Disposal

The carrying amount of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognised on disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal, The gain or loss
arising from the derecognition of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is included in

Standafone Statement of Profit and Loss when the item is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31S5T MARCH, 2019

Note [il: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.)

4 Investment Property
() Recognition-and Measurement

Land or building held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or sale in the
ordinary course of business is recognised as Investment Property. Land held for a currently
undetermined future use is also recognised as Investment Property.

An investment property is measured initially at its cost. The cost of an investment property

comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable expenditure. After initial recognition,

the Company carries the investment property at the cost less accumulated depreciation and
. accumulated impairment, if any.

(k) Depreciation

After initial recognition, the Company measures alf of its investment property in accordance
with Ind AS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment requirements for cost model. The depreciable
amount of an item of investment property is allocated on a systematic basis over its usefui life. -
The Company provides depraciation on the straight line method. The Company believes that
straight line method reflects the pattern in which the asset's future economic benefits are
expected to be consumed by the Company, Based on internal technical evaluation, the
management believes useful lives of the assets are appropriate. The depreciation method is
reviewed at'least at each financial year-end and, if there has been a significant change in the
expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset, the
method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for as a change
in an accounting estimate in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors,

The depreciation charge for each period is generally recognised in-the Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss.

The residual value and the usefui life of an asset is reviewed at least at each financial year-end
and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the change(s) is accounted for as a change
in an accounting estimate in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors. The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative
periods are as follows:

Useful Lives Useful Lives
(in years) (in years)
Asset Class - as per Companies | - as estimated by
Act, 2013 the Company
Buildings - 30-60 30-60

{c) Fair Value

Fair value of investment property is based on a valuation by an independent valuer whe holds a
recognised and relevant professional gualification and has recent experience in the location
and categorv of the investment property being valued. The fair value of investment property is
disclosed in the Note 3.

(d) Gain or loss on Disposal

Any gain or loss on disposal of an Investment Property is recognised in the Standafone
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Note IlI: Significant Accounting Policies {contd.)
5 Other Intangible Assets

(a) Recognition and Measurement

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance.
Intangible assets are initially measured at its cost and then carried at the cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment, if any.

Research and Development

Research is ‘original and planned investigation undertaken with the prospect of gaining new
scientific or technical knowledge and understanding. Expenditure incurred on research of an
internal project is recognised as an expense in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, when
itis incurred.

Development is the application of research findings or other knowledge to a plan or design for
the production of new or substantially improved materials, devices, products, processes,
systems or services before the start of commercial production or use. An intangible asset
arising from development is recognised if, and only if, the following criteria are met:

(a) it is technically feasibile to complete the intangible asset so that it will be available for
1se or sale,
(b) the Company intends to complate the intangible asset and use or sali it.
{c) the Company has ability to use or sell the intangible asset.
(d) the Company can demonstrate how the intangible assat will generate nrobable future
economic benefits.
(e) the Company has adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible asset,
(f) the Company has ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.
Expenditure on research activities is recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss as
incurred, .

{b) Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.All other expenditure, including expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss as incurred.

{¢) Amortisation

The Company amortises Other Intangible Assets on the straight line: method. The Company
‘believes that straight line method reflects the pattern in which the asset’s future economic
benefits are expected to be consumed by the Company. The amortisation methed is reviewed
at ledst at each financial year-end and, if there has been a significant change in the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset, the method is
changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors,

The residual value and the usefui life of an asset is reviewed at least at each financial year-end
and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the change(s) is accounted for as a change
in an accounting estimate in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors, The estimated useful lives as estimated by management are

as follows:
Useful Lives (in years)
Asset Class - as estimated by the Company
Software - 3 Years
t"k
b
2

ASE
£
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2019
Note [li; Significant Accounting Policies (contd.)

6 Non-current assets or disposal group held for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities are classified as held for sale If it is
highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured at the fower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell, Any resuftant loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then to remaining
assats- and liabilities on pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to inventories, financial assets, deferred
tax assets, employee benefit assets, and hiological assets, which continue to be measured in accordance with
the Company's other accounting policies. Losses on initial classification as held for sale and subsequent gains
and lassas 'on re-measurement are recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Once assets classified as held-for-sale, then Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property and Other
Intangible Assets are no longer required to be depreciated or amortised.

7 Employee Benefits.
(a) Short-term Employee Benefits:

Short-term employee banefit obligations are measured on an undisceunted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid e.g., under short-term
cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the empleyee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

(&) Post-Employment Benefits:
Defined contribution plans

A cefined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will kave no legal or constructive ebligation to pay further amounts,

{i) Provident and Family Pension Fund

The eligible employaes of the Company are entitlad to receive post employment benefits in respect of
provident and family pension fund, in which both the employees and the Company make monthly
contributions at a specified percentage of tha employees’ eligible salary (currently 12% of employees’
eligible salary). The contributions are made to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (RPFC) which are
charged to the Standalone Statement of Profit-and Loss as incurred. :

In respect of contribution to RPFC, the Company has no further obligations beyond making the contribution,
and hence, such employee benefit plan is classified as Defined Contribution Plan, The Company's
contribution is recognised as an expense in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2019
Note IHi: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.}

7 Employee Benefits (contd.)

(b Post—Employment Benefits (contd.):
Defined contribution plans {contd.)
(i) Superannuation

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive post employment benefits in
respect of superannuation fund in which the Company makes annual contribution at z
specified percentage of the employees’ eligible salary {currently 15% of employees’eligible
salary). The contributions are made to the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LiC).

- Superannuation is classified as Defined Contribution Plan as the Company has no further
obligations.beyond making the contribution. The Company’s contribution Is recognised as an
exnense in the Standalane Statement of Profit and Lass.

Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan.. The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by

_estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior
periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The "calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation resuits in a potential asset for
the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits
availabie in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions
to the plan (‘the asset ceiling’). In order to calculate the present value of econamic benefits,
consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and
losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest} and the effect of the asset ceiling (f any,
excluding interest), are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. The Company
determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit {iability (asset) for
the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit fability (asset), taking into
account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to
defined henafit nlang ara recnanicad in Standalane Statament af Prafit and ace

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service (‘past service cost' or 'past service gain’} or the gain or
loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises
gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit nlan when the settlemant cccurs.
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Note Ili: Significant Accounting Palicies (contd.)

7 Employee Benefits (contd.)
Defined Benefit Plans (contd.)
Cratuity

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering
eligible employees. The plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at
retirement, death while in employment or ‘on termination of employment of an amount
eguivalent to 15 days to one month salary payable for each completed year of service or part
thereof in excess of six months dépending upon category of employee. Vesting occurs upon
completion of five vears of service. The Company has obtained insurance policies with the Life
insurance Corporation of India {LIC) and makes an annual contribution to LIC for amounts
notified by LIC. The Company accounts for gratuity benefits payable in future based on an
“independent external actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the year using the projected
unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised as Other Comprehensive
Income.

Provident Fund Trust

In respect of contribution to the trust set up by tl‘e Company, since the Company is obligated -
to. meet interest shortfall, if any, with respect to covered employees, such employee benefit
plan is classified as Definéd Benefit Plan, Any obllgatlon in this respect is measured on the
basis of mdependent actuarial valuation,

{c) Other Long-term Employee Benefits - Compensated Absences
The Company provides for encashment of leave or leave with pay subject to certain rules. The
employeas are entitled to accumuiate feave subject to certain limits for future encashment /
availment. The Company makes provision for compensated absences based on an
independent actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the year. Actuarial gains and losses
are recognised in the Standafone Statement of Profit and Loss.

8 Inventories
(2) Measurement of Inventory
The Company measures its inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

(h) Cost of inventories

The cost of inventories shall comprise alf costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

The costs of purchase of inventories comprise the purchase price,"import duties and other
taxes (other than thase_subsequently recoverable by the entity from the taxing authorities),
and transport, handling and other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of finished
"goods, materials and services. Trade discounts, rebates and other simifar itams are deducted
in determining the costs of purchase.

The costs of conversion of inventories include costs directly related to the units of production
“and a systematic allocation of fixed and variabfe production overheads that are incurred in
converting materials intc finished goods.

Other costs are included in the cost of inventories only to the extent that they are incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present Jocation and condition.

The cost of inventories is assigned by weighted average cost formula, The Company uses the
same cost formula for all Inventories having a similar nature and use to the Company.
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Note II: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.)

8 Inventories (Contd.)
{c) Net rea!':s_ab!e value

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Net
redlisable value is ascertained for each item of inventories with reference to the selling prices
of related finished products.

The practice of writing inventories down below cost to net realisable value is consistent with
the view that assets should not be carried in excess of amounts expected to be realised from
their sale or use. Inventories are usually written down to net realisable value item by item.
Estimates of net realisable value of finished goods and stock-in-trade are based on the mast

. reliable evidence available =i the time the estimates are made, of the amount the inventories
are expected to realise. These estimates take into consideration fluctuations of price or cost
directly relating to events eccurring after the end of the peried to the extent that such events
confirm conditions existing at the end of the period. Materials and other supplies held for use
in the production of inventories are not written down belaw cost If the finished products in
which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. However, when a
decline In the price of materials incicates that the cost of the finished products exceeds net
realisable value, the materfals are written down to net realisable value.

Amount of any reversal of write-dowi of inventories shall be recognised as an expense as
when the event occurs.

A new assessment is made of net realisable vafue in each subsequent period. When the
circumstances that previously caused inventories to be written down below cost no longer
exist or when there is clear evidence of an increase in net realisable value because of changed
econemic circumstances, the amount of the write-down is reversed, Amounts such reversed
shall be recongnised as a reduction in the amount of inventories racongnised as an expense in
the period i which reversai occurs. -

(d) Valuation of Spare parts, stand-by equipments and servicing equipments
Spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are recognised as Property; Plant
and Equipment if and only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with them
wiil flow to the Company and their cost can be measured refiably. Otherwise such items are
classified and recognised as inventory.

9 Cash and Cash Equival'ents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are shori-term, highly
liquid investments that are readity convertipie to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other purposes. For an investment to ..
qualify as 2 cash equivalent it must be readily convertible to a known amount of cash and be
subject to an insignificant risk of changes ir value, Therefore, an investment normally quafifies as

_ a-cash eguivalent only when it has a short maturity of, say, three months or less from the date of
acquisition. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand form an‘integral part of the
Company's cash management, hence bank overdrafts are included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents.

10 Government Grants

Governmant grants are assistance by government in the form of transfers of resources to the
Company in return for past or future compliance with certain conditions relating to the operating
activities of the Company. Government grants are not be recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Company wifl comply with the Jorditions attaching to them and the grants will
be received. Government grants are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. .
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Note Ill: Significant Accounting Policies (contd:)

11 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has 2 present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows {representing the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability, The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.
Expected future operating fosses are not provided for.

" Warranties

A provision for warranties is recognised when the underlying products or services are sold.
The provision is based on technical evaluation, historical warranty data and a weighting of
all possible-outcomes by their associated probabilities.

Restructuring

A provision for restructurmg is recogmsed when the Company has approved a detailad
formal restructuring plan, and the restructuring either has commenced or has been

announced publicly.

Oneraus contracts

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected economic benefits to be derived
by the Company from the contract are fower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its
obligations under the contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the
present value of the lowar of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected
net cost of continuing with the contract. Before such a provision is made, the Company
recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.

12 Revenue Recognition

" Effective 1 April, 2018, the Company has adopted Ind AS 115 'Revenue from contracts with
customers',

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customners in
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services, Revenue is adjusted for estimated customer resurns,
rebates and other similar allowances. Revenue from sale of goods is recognized as per
below 5 step model: '
« Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
+ Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract
. Step 3: Determine the transaction price '
. Stap 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

+ Step 5: Recognise revenue when {or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognized when {or as} a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer,i.e. at which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

+ The company has transferred to the buyer the significant risk & rewards of the ownership
of the goods

+ The company retains neither continting managerial mvoivement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control aver the goods sold

_+ The amount of revenue can-be measured reliably

+ It is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
company and
The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transactlon can be measured reliably.




MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED - i i f
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,

Note Hi: Sianificant Accounting Policies (contd.)

12 'Revenue Recognition (contd.)
Interest Income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method as set out in Ind AS 109 -
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, when it is probable that the economic -
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company and the amount of the
revenue can be measured reliably. The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability {br group of financial assets or
financial Habilities) and of allocating the interest income or Intérest expense over the relevant
period.
- Rovyalty Income

Royalty income is recognised. on an accrual basis in accerdance with the substance of the
relevant agreement when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Company and the amount of the revenue can be measured
reliably.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised when right to recelve payment is established and it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction wiil flow to the Company
and the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably,

13 Foreign Currency Transactions

Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Company operates whereas presentation currency is thecurrency in which the financial
statements are presented. Indian Rupee is the functional as well as presehtation currency for
the Company.

. A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency,
by applying to the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

At the end of each reporting period, foreign currency monetary items are translated using .

 the closing rate whereas non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historicat cost in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and
non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary -
.{tems.at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during
the period or in previous Financial Statements are recognised in the Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income, any exchange componént of that gain or
loss is recognised tn Other Comprehensive Income. Conversely, when a gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, any exchange
component of that-gain or loss is recognised in Standalone Statement

of Profit and Loss. : S e
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Note Hl: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.)

14 Taxation
Income tax

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax expense, It is recognised in Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an
item recognised directly in Equity or in Other Comprehensive Income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable incomé or loss for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or recelvable in sespect of previou$ years. The
amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be pai'd ‘of recgived
after considering the uncertainty, i any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates
(and tax faws} enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax .

Deferrad tax is recognised in resnect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for
taxation purpeses. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax
credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

a temporary differences arising o the initial recegnition of assets or lizbilities in a transaction
that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss at the time of the transaction;

b taxable temporary diffarences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferrad tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against swhich they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence
that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent ldsses, the
Company recogrises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable
temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be
available against ‘which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets -
unrecognised or recognisad, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised / reduced to
the extert that it is probable / no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be
realised. : : . :

Deferred tax is measured at the fax ratas that are expecied to apnly to the peried when the asset
. Is realised or tha liabllity is settled, based on the laws that have been“enacted of substantively
enactad by the reporting date,

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or sattie the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax [iabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the
same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

e e e
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Note HIi: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.)

15 Lease

Leases of Property, Plant and Equipment where the Company, as lessee, has substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance feases are capitalised at
the fezse's Inception at the fair vale of the leased proparty or, If lower, the present value of the
minlmum lease payments, The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
Included in borrowings or the financial lfabliities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated
between the ffability and finance cost, The finance cost Is charged to the Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining bafance of the fiability for each peried.

MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED ; ;

At inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease,
At inception or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and other
consideration required by such an arrangement are separated into those for the lease and those
for other glements on the basis of their refative fair values. If it Is concluded for a finance lease
that it is impracticable to separate the payments reliably, then an asset and a Hability are
racognised at an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset. The liability s reduced as
payments are made ahd an imputed finance cost’ on the [iability is recognised using the
"incremental borrowing rate. ' .

Leases'in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferzed to
the Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives recaived from the lessor) are charged to Standalona Statement of Profit and
Loss on straight-line basis over the period of the lease uniess the payments are structured to
increase in line with expectad general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected
Inflationary cost increases. '

[ I
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Note W: Significant Accounting Policles {(contd.)
16 Financial Instrument_s

{a) Recognition and Initial measurement

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised whan they are ariginated. All
other financial assets and financial iabilities are initiafly recognised when the Company becomes
a party to the contractual terms of the instrument. .
A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at Fair
Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue.

{b} Classification and subsequent measurement

" Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is measured at
- amortised cost;
- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) - debt investment;
"= Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income - equity investment; or
- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassifled subsequent to their initlal recognition, except if and in the
peried the Company changes Its business rodel for managing financial assats.

A financial asset is measurad at amartised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FYTPL:

- the asset Is Keld within a biisiness mode! whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and .

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest orrthe principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOC! if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset is held within a business model whase objective is achieved by both collecting
cantractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset givé Tise on specified dates td cash flows that are
solely payments of princinal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equlty investment that is rot held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCl {designated
as FVOC! --equity investment). This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis,

All financial assets not classiffed as measured at amortised cost or FVOCT as described above are
measurad at FVIPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the
Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to
be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing sc eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

e i e o e 7
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Note Ili: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.)
16 Finandal instruments (contd.)
(b} Classification and subsequent measurement {contd.)

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL [These assets are subsequently measured at fair vajue. Net gains and
losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in
: Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
amortised cost effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment [osses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses =nd impairment are recognised in Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in
. Statemant nf Profit and | nss

Debt : These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. lnterest :
Investments at. FvQCl income under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are recognised in Standalons Statement of
Profit and Lass. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCL On
. |derecognition; gains and losses accumulated in OCI are redlassified!
ta Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments at These assets are subsequently measured at fair vaiue. Dividends are
Fvocr recognised as income in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of
the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in 0Cl and
are not reclassified to Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL, A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified zs held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated
as such on initial recognition. Financial Jiabilities at FYTPL are measured at fair value and net
gains and [osses, including any interast expense, are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

_Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest mathod. Interast expenise and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or [oss on derecognition is also-recognised in
Standalone Statement
of Profit and Loss.

(c) Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substanttally alt of the
risks and rewards of ownership and does

hot retain controf of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance
sheet, but retains either afl or substantiaily all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets,
the transferréd assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities -

The Company derecognises a financial Hability when its contractual obligations are discharged
or cancelléd, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a fmancaal liability whien its terms are modified and the cash
flows under the modified terms are substantially different, In this case, a new financial Tiability
based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms
is recoghised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

{d} Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance
sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
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Note [: Significant Accounting Policies {contd.)

17 Barrowing Cost _
The Company capitalises borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acguisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset-as part of the cost of that asset. The Company recognises other
borrowing costs as an expense in the period in which it incurs them. Borrowing costs are interest and
other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds including exchange

differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an
adjustment to interest costs.

A qualifying asset is an asset that necessanly takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale,

_18 Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share

The Company calculates basic earnings per share amounts for profit or loss attrtbutable to ordinary
equity holders and, if presented, profit or loss from continuing operations attnbutab]e to those equity
holders.

Rasic earnings per share is calcufated by dividing profit or loss attributable to ordinary eqgity holders (the
numerator) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding {the denominator) during the
peried. '

The weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the pericd and for 2ll periods
nresented shall be adjusted for events, other than the conversion of potential ordinary shares, that have
_ chaiigéd the ndmber of ordinary shares outstanding Without a corresponding change in resources.

Diluted earnings per share

The Company calculates diluted earnings per share amounts for proF t or loss attributable to ordinary
~ - equity holders ang, if presented, nrofit or loss from continuing operations attributable to those equity
holders.

For the burpose of talcuiating diluted earnings per share, the Company adjusts profit or (oss attributable
to ordinary equity holders, and the weighted averags number of shares cutstandmg, for the effects of all.
dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any..

For the purpose of calcufating diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary
shares calculated for calculating. basic earnings per share and adjusted the weighted average number of
ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive

potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. Dilutive potential ordinary shares are deemed to have been
converted into ordinary shares at the beginning of the period or, if later, the cate of the issue of the
potential ordinary shares.
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Note III: SianiﬁcantAccoun_tinq Policias (contd.)
19 Impairment Loss
Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit fosses on:
- financial assets measured at amortised cost; and
- financial assets measured at FYOCI- debt investmants.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised
cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘creditimpaired’ when one or. more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred. : : '

In accordance with Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, the Company foliows ‘simplified
approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The application of
simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit loss at each reporting
date, right from its initial recagnition, '

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off {either partiaily or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the
Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial
assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply
with the Company's procedures for recovery of amaunts due.

Impairment of Non Financial Assets

"An impairment loss is the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-
generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its valte i use. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Habifity in an
orderly- transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Value in use js
based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate. '

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that
-ah asset is impaired. In assessing whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired, the Company considers External as well as Internal Source of Information. if any such

" indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount for the individual asset. If,
and only if, the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset Is reduced to its recoverable amount, An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit of loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount in accordance with
another Standard. '

If it is not possible to estimate the recoverabie amount of the individual asset, the Company
determines the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs {the
asset's cash-generating unit). A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of
assets that generates cash inflows that are fargely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets ‘or groups of assets. The Company recognises impairment {oss for a cash-generating
unit if, and only i, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrving
amount of the cash-generating unit. The Company allocates impairment loss of cash-
generating units first to the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the cash-generating units,
if any, and then, to the other assets of the cash-generating units prs rata on the bzsis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the cash-generating unit. These reductions in carrving
amounts shall be treated as impairment losses on individual assets and recognised accordingly.

S
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ste ill: Significant Accounting Policies {contd.)

20 Measurement of fair values

A number of the Companies accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of
fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair
values. This includes a valuation team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all
“significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the
Chief Financial Officer.

The valuation team regularly. reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to
measure fair values, then the vaiuation team assesses the evidence obtained from the third
parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS,
including the lavel in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

Fair values are categonsed into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs
used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or [iabilities "

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices inciuded in Level T that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indiractly (i.e. derived from prices).

Leval 3: inputs for the asset or Flabrlsty that are no* based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market
data as far as'possible. If the inputs used to measufe the fair vatue of an asset or a liability fall
into different leveis of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised
in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is
significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hlerarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred,

21 Investment in Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Company,
The Company accounts for the investments in equity shares of subszdiaries at cost in
accordance with Ind AS 27 - Separate Financial Statements.




MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SN S,

ote 2: Prope Pl and Equipme In Rupees
Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation Net Biock
Descriprion As at . As at As.at ’ As at A
Add s at

1stApril, 2018 trions Deductions | 355t March, 2019 | st April, 2618 Additlons Dedurtions | 3y March, 2019 | 315t March, 2015

teasehold Land 29,998,759 - - 29,992,799 5,149,047 48,913 i - 6,62,960 ’ 23,3%,839
{43,71,607) - (13,72,808) . (29,98,79% (7,517,189} (61,215; {1,98,357) (6.14,047) {23,84,7%2)

Bulldings 3,28,23,838 5,09,652 - 3,33,33,490 1,73,08,874 11,32,553 - 1,84,41,427 1.48,92,063
1 (3,95,74,783) - (67,50,945) (3,28,23,838) (1,89,66,564) (13,58,813) (30,16,503) 1.73,08,879) (1,55.14,964)

Plant ard Equipments 20,36,84,548 - - 20,56,84,548.] . 17,31.19,406 76,15.717 - 18.07.35,123 2,29,49,425
(2_0,52,02,22?) (32,811,435} (47,99,114) {20,36,84,548) 17,00,04,761) {77,11,428) {45,96,782) {17,31,19,406) (3,05,65,142)

Furniture and Fixtures 70,48,971 - - 70,48,971 69,91,683 24,118 - 70.15,80 ' 33,170
(70,48.971) - - (70,48,977) (69,60,397) (31,286) - (69,91,683) (57.288)

vehicles 42,95,152 - 32,47,906 10,47,246 40,31,498 85.250 31,94,852 9,21,796 1.25.450
(55,74,462) - (12,79,310) (42,95,152) (43,971,110 (2,87.554) (6.47,166) (40,31,498) (2.63.654)

Office Equipments 81,80,304 - - 81,80,304 77,36,545 2\22.722 Z 79.59,267 ¢ 2,21.037
(82,86,677) (24,500 (1,30,873) (81,80,304), (76,44,939) (2,22,479) (1,30,873) (77.36.545) {4.43.759)

Computers 63,309,122 4,30,000 - 67.69,12z 57,46,550 7.22.679 - 64.69,230 2.99,892
(93.99,194) {(3.14,816) (33,74,889) (63,39.122} (87,15,847) (4,05,592) {(33,74,889) {57,46,550}) (5,92,571)

Totaf Tangible Assets 26,53,70,735 9,39,652 32,47,906 26 30,62.481 21,55,48,604 98,571,952 31,94,952 22,22,05,604 4.08.56.875

(27.94,57,922) (36,20,751) {(3,77,07,938) (26,53,70,735) {21,74,34,807) (1,00,78,367) (1,19,64,570) {21,55,48,6049) (4.93:22:1 3N

2.1. Figures in the brackets are the corresponding figures in respect of the previous year.
2.2. No iterns of Property, Plant and Equipment were pledged as security for Habilities during any part of the clrrent and comparative periods.
2.3. Nil amount of borrowing costs Is capitalised during the current and comparative periods. ' !

) 2.4, Nil amount of impairment loss [s recognlséd during the current and comparative periods.




MARF"OI. PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In Rupees
ote 3: Other ! Ible Assets
Gross Block - Accumulated Amortisation Net Block
As at As at A
Description As at . As at . . s at
B . 1st April, 2018 Additions Daductions . 21st Marc'h._ .| ¥st April, 2018 Additions Deductions 21st March, 315t March,
2019 . 2019 2019
Software 31,30,3758 - - 31,30,375 21,433,901 1,906,069 - 23,33,970 7.96,405
(19,52,375) (11,78,000) - (31,30,375) (17,63,764) (3,80,138) - {21,43,901) (9,86,474)
Total Other Intangible Assets 31,30,375 - - 31,330,275 ©21,43,90 1,90,069 - 232,33,970 7.96,405
{19,52,375) {11,78,000) - {(31,30,375) (17.63,764) (3,80,138) - (21,43,501) (9,86:474)

3.1. Figures In the brackets are the corresponding figures in respect of the previous year.
3.2. Nil amount of borrewing costs Is capitalised during the current and comparative periods.
3.3. Nil amount of Impairment loss is recognised during the current and corparative periods.




MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED

) NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ‘ . g 2
‘ ’ 7 In Rupees
Note 4: Non-current Investments As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018
Investments in Equity In;truments: |
L Others ' |
Goa Urban Co-op. Bank ' - 5,00,000
Nil

{10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 50 each)

_.5.00,000_

Total Non-current Investments

Aggregate book value of unquoted investments

- 5,00,00C
Aggregate market vatue of unquoted investmants - 5,G0,000
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments ' ' - .
Aggfe_gate amount of imzairment in value of investments Nit Nil




MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 5: Other non-current assets

Unsecured and Considered Good
Capital Advances
income Tax Paid (Net of Provisions)

Note 6: Inventories
Raw Materials
Work-in-progress
Finished Goods
Stores and Spares

. Asat
31st March, 2019

In Rupees

_ As at
31st March, 2018

20,55,247

1,62,016
1,62,016 20,55,247
5,35,48,330 3,61,68,424
87,57,553 1,22,16,234
4,03,24,577 2,36,03,672
2,43,09,104 1,66,45,423

12,69,39,564

8.86,33,753




MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In Rupees
. Note 7: Trade Recelvables ) ' As at As at
. 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Overdue for a Perfod Exceeding Six Months: ’
Secured, Considered Good - -

- Unsecured, Considered Good . 19,35,944 ) 581,827

Doubtful 1,37.6) 429 . 1,40,04,122

1,56,97,373 1.45,85,940

Less: Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts 1,37,61,429 1,40,04,122
19,353,844 581,827

.

Qther Receivables:
Secured, Considered Good -

Unsecured, Considered Good 15,46,25,305 12,02,28,580

Doubtful . _ - -
15,46,25,305 12,02,29,580

Less: Provision for 8ad and Doubtful Debts - -

15,46,25,305 12,02,29,590

.__15,65.61,249 12,08.11.416

I
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MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED Z
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS )

In Rupees
Note 8: Cash and cash equivalents As at ‘ As at
: 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Cash on hand | - 61,746 45,003
Banks Balances ' 7,05,796 - 4,26,82,212
- 7,67,541 4,27,27,215
Note 9: Bank Balance other than Cash and cash
equivalents
Fixed Deposit with Bank ) : 32,73,054 15,35,340
32,73,054 19,35,340
Unsecured and Considered Good
Security Deposits 10,97,356 18,56,412
10,97,356 18,560,412
Note 11: Other Current Assets
Unsecured and Considered Good _
Bzlances with Indirect Tax Authorities 32,46,136 16,85,160
Trade Advantces 16,15,133 59,56,113
Prepaid Expenses ' 19,78,350 19,18,590
Fixed Deposit with Bank (Maturity more than 12 Months} 6,65,151 5,89,045
QOther Receivable 13,702 5,660

75,18,472 1,01,54,567




MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 12: Share Capital

1. Authorised Share Capital (Rs)
Par Yalue per Share (Rs)
Number of Equity Shares

2. I'ssued,'Subscribed and Fully Paid up (Rs)

Par Value per Share (Rs)
Number of Equity Shares

3. Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of

Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited

Kamiesh " A. Pai Panandiker (HUF)

Vishvanath . A, Pai Panandiker (HUF)

Shambhu A. Pai Panandiker (HUF}

Shanu A. Pai Panandiker (HUF)

Ramchandra A. Pai Panandiker (HUF)

Vishvanath P Panandiker Tdg.& Inv.Co. Pvt. Ltd.

Veda P Panandiker Tdg. & [nv. Co. Pvt. Ltd,

Shanu P Panandiker Trdg, & Inv. Co. Pvt. Ltd.

Ramchandra P Panandiker Tdg.& Inv.Co.Pvt.Ltd.
tmaram P Palondicar Trdg. & Inv. Co. Pvt. Ltd.

4. Aggregated number of bonus share issued during
tha period of fiva vears immediately preceding.the
reporting date by capitalisation of security premium

reserve

5. The Company has issued one class of shares, i.e.
equity shares, which enjoys similar rights in respect
of voting, payment of dividend and repayment of
capital. On winding up of the Company, the holders
of equity shares wili be entitled to receive the
residual assets of the Company, remaining after

distribution of all preferential amounts
proportion to the number of equity shares held.

6. Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding:

Number of shares at the beginning of the year
Issued during the year '

Number of shares at the end of the year
7. Capital Management: )

For the purpose of the Company's capitai
management, capital indudes issued- equity share
capital and all other equity reserves attributable to
the equity holders of the Company. The Company's
policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as t0
maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the business.
Management monitors the return on capital, as well
as the levels of dividends to equity shareholders.
The Company is not subject to any externally

imposed capital requirements.

nr

In Rupees
As at ‘ As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
- 5,00,00,000 5,00,00,000
10 1y
50,00,000 50,00,000
2,99,52.000 2,99,52,000
. 10 10
29,95,200 29,895,200
% No of % No of
Shares Shares
-100% 29,95,200 - B
- - 13.33% 3,99,200
- - 12.02% 3,60,000
- - 9.01% 2,70,000
- - 8.97% 2,68,800
- - 8.97% 2,568,800
- - 8.65% 2,58,200
- - 8.09% 2,422,400
- - 6.61% 1,98,000
- - 6.61% 1,898,000
- - 6.09% 1,82.400
Nil Nil
29,95,200 29,85,200
29,95,200 29,285,200
AR PN
£ Fe W
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MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TG THE F!NAI_‘JCIAL STATEMENTS f 2
Note 13 - Resarves and Surplus :
_in Rupess

General Reserve | Retained Earnings Total
Bafance as at Tst April, 2017 83,92,356 11,22,41,283 12,06,33,639
Profit for the year - (7,48,28,476) {7.48,28,475}
Balanca és at 31st March, 2018 83,92,356 3,74,12,808 | 4,58,05,164

In Ru'pees

General Reserve | Retained Earnings Total
Balance as at 15t April, 2018 83,592,356  3,74,12,808 4,58.05,164
Peofit for the pericd - 1,68,51,928 1,68,51,928
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 83.92,3@ 5,42,64,735 6,26,57,091

v ———— e o e 0 e e e o e[t T et



MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED i 2?’

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

: | In Rupees
Note 14: Borrowings ‘ As at As at
' 31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018
a. Term Loans From Banks and Financial Institution - 10,23,811

- 10,23,811
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MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ;2 ?

_ in Rupees
Note 16: Borrowings Asat As at
' 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018

Short~term Term Loan ' - 17,55,108
Working Capital Loan 10,50,05,546 14,68,36,042
10,50,05,546 14,85,91,150

Note 17: Trade Payables

Trade Payables
Payables to Micro and Small Enterprises*. - -
‘Payables to Others ' 14,52,29,344 8,37,25,690
_ 14,52,29,344 8,37,25,690
*Based on the information and explaination
available with management, there are no amounts
due to the suppliers covered under the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
Note 18: Other Financial Liabilities
Trade Deposits _ 32,94,339 30,894,339
32,94,339 30,94,339
*There is no amount due and outstanding to be
credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund.
Note 19: Other Current Liabilities
Other Statutory Payables 36,38,698 43,52,061
Trade Receivables with Credit Balance 0,94,768 1 2,12,634
46,33,466 45,064,695
Note 20: Provisions
Provision for Compensated Absences 7,60,095 10,47.089
Provision for Gratuity 24,90,703 -

32,50,798 10,47,089




MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Nate 21: Revenue from Operations

Sale of Products {including excise duty)
Sales
Less: Rebates

Total Safe of Products

Other Operatihg Ravenues
Sale of Scrap
Others

Revenue from Operations

Note 22: Other Income
Dividend Income
Dividend from Investment

Interest [ncome
Interest on Loans and Deposit

Other Non operating Income
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Forelgn Exchange Gain (Net)
Insurance Claims Recelved

Period ended
31st Mart;h. 2019

in Rupees

Year ended
31st March, 2018

68,64,87,186 -
68,64,87,186
25,06,611
44,492
 25,51,103
__ 68,90,38.289
1,95,170
195,170
2,668,005
2,68,005

p——

463175

59,27,85,157
59,27,85,151
7,26,523
462,234
11,88,757
59,39,73,909
15,000
15,600
2,46,293
2,46.293
5,13,775
19,28,156
24,41,931

27,03,223




MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 23: Cost of Materials Consurred Period ended
31st March, 2019

Bl

In Rupees

Year ended
31st March, 2018

Raw Material Consumed

Opening Stock . 3,56,23,098
Add: Purchase 51,19,51,705
Less: Salas ' -
Less: Closing Stock 5,21,87,161
. 49,53,87,642
Facking Material Consumed
Opening Stock 545,346
Add: Pyrchase 1,60,78,403
Less: Closing Stock 13,61,189
1,52,62,560
510650200
Note 24; Changes n Inventories of Finished Goods,
Stock-in-trade and Work-in-progress
Opening Stock ‘ : .
Finished Goods 2,36,03,672
Work-in-progress 1,22,16,234
' | 3,58,19,906
Less: Closing Stock
Finished Goods 4,03,24,577
Work-in-progress 87,557,533

4,90,82,130 -

Add: Excise Duty Related to the Difference between the -
Ciesing Stock and Opening Stock of Finished Goods

e 1:32,62,224)

3,20,62 461
37,92,61,524

3,56,23,078

9,94,808
1,41,21,249
5,45,346

3,45,61,584

.1,62,77,894

2,36,03,652

1.22,16,234

37,57,00,008

1,45,70,711

- 39,02,71,619

5,08,39,47¢

3,58,19,886
(5.62,397)
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Note 25: Empioyee Benefits Expense

Salaries and Wages
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
 Staff Welfare Expense

Note 26: Depreciation and Amortisation

Cepreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment

Amortisation on Other Intangible Assets

Note 27: Other Expenseés

Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts
Power and Fuel

Repairs to Buildings

Repairs to Machinery

Freight and Forwarding Charges
Advartisement and Sales Promotion
Rent

Insurance

Miscellaneous Expenses

Period ended
31st March, 2019

in Rupees
Year ended

31st March, 2018

4,05,59,612 5,19,45,372
56,69,164 45,48,084
26,73,167 40,87,596
4,89,01,943 6,05,81.052_
98,51,952 1,00,78,367
1,90,069 3,80,138
1,00,42,021 1,04,58,504

1,63,20,926
2,88,26,058
1,63,073
49,60,524
2,38,81,351
2,18,602
16,90,494
7,47,722
2,70,73,077

2,20,21,305
2,37,11,848
4,89,898
46,03,158
2,05,58,148
3,70,712
54,94,880
11,67,927
4,24,03,222

103881825

12,08,22,657
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MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 31.1: Payments to Auditors’
Auditors’ Remuneration excluding Service Tax/CST
(Included int Miscellaneous Expenses in Note 31)
As Auditor '
Statutory Audit
"Report under Section 44AB of the Income-tax Act, 1961
Limited Review of Quarterly Results
In other capacity

Certification
Other Matters
Reimbursements of Expenses

Note 31,2: Research and Development Expenses

Revenus Expenditure on Research and Development
recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss is

/32

¥ in Crores
Year Ended Year Endad
31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018
459233.00 4508233.00
3270000 -
4,91,933.00 459233.00
nif
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 32: Contingent Liabilities and commitments
(to the extent not provided for)

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as
debt: '

Sales Tax & Income Tax

The Company has made adequate provisions in the
accounts for claims against the Company related to
direct and indirect taxes matters, except for certain
claims not acknowiedged as debts,

Sales Tax

Amount totalling to Rs. 59,66,949/- from the Sales
Tax Authorities, a demand of sales tax for non-
submission of Form ‘C’ for the year 2004-05.
Income Tax

Amount totalling to Rs. 27,70,026/- from the
Income Tax Authorities, a demand notice for
assessment year 2003-2004 Rs. 14,57,756/- and
2010-11 Rs, 13,12,270/~

" The Company's management is of the gpinion that
uitimate liability in respect of these litigations shall
not exceed the amouni provided in books of
account, and shall not have any material adverse
effect on the Company's operation and financial
nosition,

Excise

Appeal No. E/115/2011 and E/579/2011 Against
OlA No. GOAJCEX/GSK/113 & 114 Dt.30.11.10 -
Excise duty difference of Himachal Pradesh Baddi

Corporate guarantee

Corporate guarantee given to Bank - Bank
Guarantee & letter of Credit

Note 33: Earnings Per Eauity Share
Numerator:
Profit attributable to Equity Sharehelders (% in Crores)

Denominator:
Weighted Average Number of ordinary shares at

the beginning and end of the year

Basic and Diluted Earnings per Equity Share (in &)

134

{in Crores
Year ended Year ended
31st March, 31st March,
20719 ’ 2018
8736475 8736975
2750923.00
15752418.00 8782863.00 .
27240316.00 17519838.00
1,68,51,928 (7.48,28,496)
29,95,200.00 29,95,200.00
5.63 (24.98)
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/ . NOTESTOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS '
A redaed nanty B 2 person or enthy that s related {o the entity that Is peepasing Its Finsnelsd Statements.
- DA persan ar 2 close member of that person's family & tefated to 3 ropssting entity I that person;
B {0 a3 control or Jalar controf of the reporeing extity;

(2 has sigrificant infiuence over the reponting entity; oy
s mberﬂf !he key management personnet orlhe T2poiting entity o of & pazec of the teposting eml{f

(b} An entity B related o 3 reportlad entity If any'of the fallowing condirians applies:

{) The entity and the raparting enty ate riembiers of e same: araup {which eeans that such parant, subsidiary and
fellow subSidlary Is refated ta the ethers).

{ili One eatiy I3 dn assoclare or Jelst venture of 1he othee entlty (or &0 dssuclate wr joial yenture of member of z groip of
which the other enuty Is 2 member..

{53 Buth eratitles arg jelnt ventures of the same third pany.

it} One entlty Is a Jolnt verrture of 2 third entity aad the other entky Is an associate of the thied erity,

) The.enfiry Is & post-1 emp!uymem heriefls plan for the bamefit of amployens of clther the reperting entity or an enthty
rafated 10 the reponting ensity, If the [epu:ﬂng entity Is Jsell such aplmn, the sponsorifg empleyers ars alze relatéd 1 the
repaning eatlsy,

(vid The eatfey Is controfled or jolntly-contrlled by a parson idaniifed. in (ah

{vif) A perton identified fn (alfi haz-significant inflvzace: cuer the anlity or.i a member of the key mnaqemem personnal
af the e:mly {or of x freat of the antity),

{vmh The &uthry, or any member of 2 group of which It I part, provides keéy managewment pasonnct semvices 1w the
{epoﬂlns enuly’ or i the pnrenl of the mpurilng entlly,

& felated | patTy mnsmlaa 16 ¥ transFer of resources, carres qrabhgzdnn.s hetwctn A reposting entity and & related pany,
regardlass of whether a price Is charged:

parent 3nd i mare controlling extiry

Nams % Shateheldivg  [Typa Mringipal Activitles  {Placa ol
2819 2012 ) imcovonritian
Kansai Palatz Co, L34, Japan Ultlmate Mangdacuting liapen
- D eantraling Painty ' '
Authedty
Kansal Nerotag Pants (id, e a Parent Atanufagturing tndia.
Patmty

¥anzat Paints Co, Lt 15 the immediate and uitlmate holdiag company of Kansat Herelag Pam:s Lid and 13 hasn.-d and
iistesd In Japan, Finantlat Statements of Kansul Faints Cen; 1€, are availablt in public dumain,

Kay maagement personsniel ae those persens having authorky-and respopsibillly for plasning, dircring and cantielling
she activities of the antty, dinsetty of Ingliecdly, Iachuding any directdr (whetner execuiive or oibenwse} of that entiy. K:’f
management persona! indudes (1) Mr, 7, T, Pai, Dwetwor () Mr G 1. Eemdzra;an. Director, and {3} fohle Pat
Panandiker, Dizezesr.

Retated Party Tramsactions: Anount b d
Trasaetion Toge Refarion 2018 2013 ]
Sabe of finkshed goods/tnzermediates
~Fansaf Nesolac Painta Lid. N Parent entity | 6.04,09,941.60 -
Futchase of Caods ]
- Kansal Nerefac Palnts tid. Parpnt entity | 4.81.25.325.00 -
Relared Pany Transacdons. . Amountin
Trantaction Tysa Tctaton 2019 A8
Recevahle 15 31 Year Eng
Kansai Nerolac Painesad, Parent enlity $2.38.205.00 -
0
Payzble a3 at Year End )
Kansai Nerolac Falnts L. Farent eatly | 4.85,54,648.00 -
Key Management Persennc!
(x} shott-term employee banefits 24.05.170.60 -
Redated Party Transactions!
Rehited party ransaetlons wire M2de an Lerms equivslent 1o thase that prevall In 3n azm's length tansactiens.




MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED , ?
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 36: Seqment Reporting

" The Management Committee of the Company, approvad by the Board of Directors and Audit Committee performs the
fuactlon of alfotment of resources and assessment of performance of the Company. Considering the leve! of activities

* performed, frequency of thelr meetings and level of finality of their decisions, the Company has identified that Chief
Operating Decision Maker function is being performed by the Management Committee. The financial information
presented to the Management Comimittes in the context of results and for the purposes of approving the annuaf
operating plan is on a consolidated basis for various products of the Company. As the Company’s business activity
faifs withln a single business segment viz. ‘Paints’ and the sales substantially being in the domestic market, the -
financial statement are reflective of the information required by Ind AS 108 “Operating Segments".

‘Note 37:‘ Corgoraig Social Responsibilities

-Dun’ng the year, the Company has spent Nii (2017-2018 Nil) towards ‘Corporate Social Responsibility Activities’ (CSR
Actlvities). .

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year-Nil.

() . Amount spent-during the year on:
Zin Crores

In Cash Yet to be Total
paid in cash

(0 |Constructionfacquisitiion of any asset - - | -

(il {On purposes other than {1} above




MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Mote 38. financlal jnstruments: Falr values and Risk Management

(A} Accounting Classifications and Fair Values

| 9%

The fotlowing table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their

- lowale in the fair valna hiararchy

| Other financial
Year At FVTPL [assets / fiabilities - Level 1 | Level 2 { Level 3 Total
Amortised cost
Financial Assets measured af Fair Value :
Nen-current Assets: - 2019 1,62,076. 1,62,016.00
Investments (Note 5) _ 2018 20,55,247.00 20,55.247.00
Current Assets: 2019 - T -
Invastmants (Note 4) 2018 | 5,00,000.00 5,00,0060.00
Financlal Assets not measurad at Fair Value
Non-current Assets: Other [_2019 - 12,69,59,354.00 17.85.35,564.00
Financial Assets {Note A) 2018 - 8,86,33,753.00 8,86,33,753.00
Current Assets: Trade 2019” - 15,65,61,249.00 7 TS.85.67,243.00 |
Recehahles (Nate 7) 2018 - 12,08,11,416.00 | 12,08,11,416.00
Current Assets: Cashand 12019 - 7,67,541.00 7.57,541.00
Cash Equivalent {Note 8) 2018 _ 4,727.27.215.00° 4.27,27,21 S.OQ
Current Assets: Bank 2019 - 32,73,054.00 37.73.054.00
Balances other than Cish 2018 - 19,35,340.00° 19,35,340.00
Current Assets: Loans 2019 - 10,97,356.00 10,57,356.00
WNete 10) 2018 - 18,56,412.00 18,56,412.00
Current Assets: Other 2018 - 75,18,472.00 75,18472.00
Financial Assets (Note 11) | 2018 - 1,01,54,567.00 1,01,54,567.00.
Financial Liabilities not measured at Fair Value
Nen-current Liabilities: 2019 -1 0,50,05,546.00 10,50,05,546.00
Borrowings (Note 16) 2008 | - 14,85,91,150.00 14,85,91,150.00
Current Liabilities: Trade 2018 - 14,52,29,344.00 14,572,28,344 00
Payable (Note 17) 2018 - 8,37,25,680.0¢ §,37,25,690.00
Current Liabifities: Other 2019 - 32,94,339.00 37,84,339.00
_ {Financial Liabilities (Note 2018 - 30,94,339.00 30.94,3397.00
PRIV,
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MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 38; Financial Instruments; Fair values and Risk Management (contd.}
(B) Financiaf Risk Management

The Company has exposure ta the foilowing risks arlsing from financlal instruments;
- Credit Risk

- Liguidity Risk

- Market Risk’

(0 Risk Management Framework

Risk Management Committee oversees the management of these risks. Management is supported by Risk Management Committes thatadvises or
finzncial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The Risk Management Committee provides assurance to tht
management that Company's risk activities are governed by appropriate pofices and procedures and that financial risks are icentified, measured anc
managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives.

The. Company's Risk Management Pollcies are established to identlfy and analyses the risks faced by the Company to set appropriate tisk limits and
contrals and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.. Risk Management Policles and Systems are reviewed regularly to reflect ¢lianges in marke!
conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its tralning and managerent standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined
and censtructive centrol environment In which all employees undarstand their roles

and obligations.

{ti} Credit Risk

Credit Risk Is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a custamer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to mest Its"coritractual obligations,”
and anises principally from the Company's receivables from customers, loans and investmants in debt securities. Yhe carrying amounts of financial
2ssets represent the maximum cred|t risk exposure.

Trad.e Receivables and Loans:

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainiy by the individual characteristics of each customer. The Risk Management Committes has

established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before the Company's standard payment and

defivery terms and condltions are offered, The Company’s review Includes financial statements, crediz agency informatien, industry information and in
" some cases bank references. Sales limits are established for each customer and reviewed

‘constantly, Any sales exceeding those fimlts require approval from the managsment.

Financial lnstruments and Cash Deposlts

Credit risks from balances with_banks and financial Inctitutions is managed by the Compzny's Treasury Department in accordance with the Company's
policy. Investments of surplus funds are made orily with approved counterparties and within credit fimits assigned to each countsrparty. The limits ar
- st to'miimise the cencentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty's potential faflure to make payments, :

(#i} Liquldity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter Gifficulty in meeting the obligaticns associated with Its financiat liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another flnanclal asset, The Company's approach to managing liquidity Is to ensuze, as far as possibie, that it wift have sufficlent
liqudity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage
to the Company’s reputation, :

* Maturities of Financial Uabilitles: .
The table below analyse the Company's financial liabilities intc relevant matering grouping based on their contractual maturities:

‘ Z inICmres
On Upto 3monthsto | 6months | 1vearte | 3 yearsand
Year endeFI demand 3 manths 6 months " | to year 2 years above ] Total

Borrowings 31-03-2018 ; 10,50,05,546.00 10,50,05,546.00
31-03-2018 | 14,85.91,150.00 14,85,91,150,00

Trade Payables|31-03-201¢ 14,52 29.344.00 14,52,29.344.00
31-03-2018 8,37,25:696.00 §37,25,690.00

Other Financial|31-03-2019 32,94,339.00 32.94,330.00
Liabilities 31-03-2018 30,94,339.00 30,94,339.00

(iv) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the falr value of future cash flows of a fimancial instrument will flzctuate because of changes in market prirec. Market price
comprises three types <7 risis: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity price risk. The objective of
market risk management is to manage and conerel market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while aptimizing the return. [n respect of
monetary assets and [fabilities denominated in forelgn currencies, the Company’s policy Is to ensura that its net exposure is kept to an acceptable
level. .
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{IV) Market RIsk (contd.} ’
Exposure to Curency Rick; :
The summary quantitatlve data about the Company’s exposure lo currency risk Is as follows:
T - Amaunt jn ¥
“‘": . _ CHF EURD Iy G0 oGEP | ZAR usp . MR Totsi
Trade 31-03=2019. 15,82 664.00 15,49,68,580.00 15,65.67,249.00
|Receivables | 31-03-2018 12.0811.416.00 | 12.08,11,416.00 |
Trade 31-03-2019 ) 16.15.133.00 16,15.133.0
Advances 31-03-2018 : ) 59,56.113.00 59,56.113.6
Flnaacial -
|Liabilities ‘
Trade 31-03-2019 6%9,322.00 84,03722.00 13,6.35.800.00 7 1432.29.344.00
Payables 31-03-2018 26,09,750.00 . 58,35,513,00 7,52,80,427.00 8,37,25,690.00
Net exposure (31-~03-2012 | . (6.89,322.00) 168,19,353.00) 7,04 46.913.00 1,29.47.038.60
to Foreign 31-03-2018 (26,09,750.00} {58,35,513.00} £,14,87,102.06 4,30,41 839,00
Currency Risk - i 1
(Llabilities)
(v} Foreiga Currency Sensitivity Analysis ]
. .." The follawing table demonstrate the sensitivity to & rizsonable possible change In CHF, EURO, JPY and USD exchange rates, with all other variabie held constant,
Profit or Loss £quity net of tax
Strengthen } Weakening| Strength | Weakent
‘ ng. LI
|31 st March, 2013
" ICHF (5% movement} : - - - R
{ELIRO (55 movement) BE - T '
APy (5% movemant}
[SGD [5% movement)
USD {3% movement)
315t March, 20%8 .
CHF (5% movement]
|EURO (5% movement)
1FY (5% movement)
USD (5% movement
{C) Valwatlon techniques and significant urobsetvable Inputs
]Typ: Valuation technique Significimt unobservahle inter-refationship between
tnputs slgnificant Ynobservabie inputs ane fair vaire measurement
© Otoer Non-curreat assets:  :Discounted cash flows: The valustion model |- Farecast Annuaf révenue Generally, a changes In the annual revetiv2 growth @ie is
Investment maasured 2% |considers the ' ) growth .. accompanled simifar change in -
amort(sed cast presant value of expected ceceipt/payment [~ Forecast EIDA growth margini FBIDA margin.
discourtad uslag appropriate discounting |~ Risk adjustmeat dlscounted
rtes. rte
Cutrznt Investments = in The falr vahses of Investments Not applicable Not applicable
mutal funds mytuat fund ualts Ts based on the net asset
- value ('HAV') as stated by the Issuers of
these mutyal fund units In the published
statements as at Balance Sheet date, NAY
reprasents tha price at which the tssuer will
Issue further unlts of mutual fund and the
price at which Jsswers will redeem such unlts
from the Investors
J

The Company determined the falr valus measurements cf Invastments -unquoted categorlsed in Level 2 based on price agraed In a s2le transaction between unrelated parties.

Carrylng amounts of cash and ¢ash equivalents, trsde recalvables, ioans and trade payables a5 at 315t March, 2019 and 315t Marck, 2018 approximate the fair value, Difference
batween carylng amounts and falr vakues of bank deposits, earmarked bafances with banks, other finapgial assets, other financial liabllities and borrowings subsequently
measured at amortised cost Is hot slgnificant In each of the years presented,

As per our Rapott of even date
For Ganash Dalvaina & Co. for and on behalf of the Board
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